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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Report on the Audit of Standalone financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanving Standalone financial Statements of CASA GRANDE
ZEST PRMTE LIMITED ("the Company"), w'hich comprises of the Balance Sheet as at

March 31.2024 and the Statement ofProfit and Loss including other comprehensive income for
the year then ended, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash florvs for the year

then ended, and notes to the Standalone financial Statements, including a summary of
significant accomting policies and olher explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid Standalone financial Statemens give the informalion required b;- the Companies

Act.2013 ('Act') in the manner so requred and give a true and farr vierv in conformiry- *ith
the accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies

(ndian Accotmting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ('Ind AS) and other accounting

principles generally accepted in lndi4 of the state of aflairs of the Company as at March 31.

2024, iis Profit, and total comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year

ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section

143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further

described in the auditor's responsibilitres for the audit of the Standalone financial Statements

section of our report. We are independant of the Compan-v- in accordance rvith the code of ethics

issued by the Institute ofChartered Accountants oflndia together with the ethical requirernotts

t}1at are relevant to our audit ofthe Standalone financial Statements rmder the provisions of the

Act and the rules thereunder, and rve have ful{illed our other elhical responsibilities in

accordance ll,ith these requirements and the code olEthics. We believe that the audit evidence

rve have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Information othcr than the Standalonc financial Statemcnts and Auditor,s Rcport
thereon

Thc Company's board of dircston is rcsponsiblc for the preparation ofthc othcr infbrmation.
The other inlormation comprises the information included in the Board's Report including
annexure to Board's Report but does not include the Standalone financial Statements antl our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone financial Statcments does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with orr audit ofthe Standalone financial Statements. our rcsponsibility is to reacl

the other information and. in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent rvitl the Standalone financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during our

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Based on the work we have perfonned,

if rvc concludc that therc is a material nrisstatemcnt o1'this other information; we arc rcquired
ro rcport that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
financial Statem€nts

The Company's board oldirectors are responsiblc to the mafte$ statcd in scction 134 (5) ofthe
Act with respect to the preparation ofthese Standalone financial Statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the Company jn accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in ludia, including the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Acl read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. This rcsponsibility also includes maintcnance ofadcquare
accounting rccords in accordance rvilh the provisions ofthc Act for safcguarding of thc asscts
ofthe Company arrd for preventing and detccting frauds and other incgulariticsl selcction and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and esrimatcs that arc
rcasonablc and prudent; and design. implementation and maintenance of adequatc intcmal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy ancl completeness
ofthe accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
eITOr.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, natters reiated to
going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so. The Board ofdirectors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

|RAN
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Auditor's Rcsponsibilities for the Audit of Standalonc financial Statcmcnts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs rvill always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perf'orm audit procedures responsive

to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriatc to provide a

basis for our opinion. The risk ofnot detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting finm ermr, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovcrride of intemal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether thc
company has adequate intemal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriatcness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a matedal uncertainty exisls,
we are required to dfaw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the Standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial Statcments
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing ofthe audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement tlrat we have complied with

relevant ethical requirement regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and rvhere applicable, related safeguards.

Report On Other Legnl and Regulatory Requirements

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the OrdeC'), issued by thc

Cenhal Govemment of India in terms of sub-section (l l) of section 143 of the Act, we give

in the "Anncxure A* a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order,

to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

b) ln our opilion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination ofthose books.

c) The Balance Sheet and the Statement ofProfit and Loss (including other comprehensive

income), statement of changes in equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt rvith by this

Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial Statements comply rvith the Ildian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 ofthe Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors a^s on March 31.

2024 taken on record by the board ofdirectors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on
March 3l,2024 hom being appointcd as a director in terms of Section I 64 (2) of the Act.

frlar Manlra
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Materiality is the magnitudc of misstatements in the Standalone financial Statements that,

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably

knowledgeable user of the Standalone financial Statements may be influenced. We consider

quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit rvork and

in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Standalone financial Statements.

f) With respect to the adequacy ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating effectiveness
ofsuch controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B" to this report.
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g) According to the information and explanation given to us on the basis ofour examination
ofrecords of the company, managerial remuneration has not paid/providcd. Accordingly,
reporting under section 197(16) ofthe act is not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with Rule l1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amendcd, in our

opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us.

i. The company has disclosed the pending litigations as at 3lst March 2024 on its
financial position in its Standalone financial Statements - Refcr Note 33 to the

Standalone financial Statcments.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there werc any material forcseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Invcstor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (i)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from bonowed funds or share

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other

persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intemediaries"), with the

understanding, whether recorded in writing or othenvise, that the Intermediary shall

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or cntities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii)The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding. whethcr rccorded in

writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoevsr by or on bchalf of the

Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
from or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii)Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to

believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) ofRule I l(e) contain any

material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any Dividend during the ycar.

Vil.r MatI t249
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vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used

accounting softwares for maintaining its books ofaccount for the financial year ended

March 31, 2024 which has a feature ofrecording audit trail (edit log) facility and the

same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the

softwares. Further, during the course ofour audit we did not come across any instance

ofthe audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(l) ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
Aprll 1,2023, reporting under Rule l1(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory rcquirements for record

retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,2024,

For Vaithisvaran & Co LLP.

Chartered Accountants

FRN 004494S/S2000

PIace: Chennai
Datc:25-07-2024

\
R Sanjeev

Parlner

Membcrship No:24545
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Annexurc A to the Inde ndcnt Auditor's Reoort

(Refcrred to in paragraph I under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report to the Memben of CASA GRANDE ZEST PRMTE
LIMITED of even date)

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Government

of India in terms of Section 143(ll) of the Companies Act 2013, to the best of our

information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the

books ofaccount and records examined by us in the normal course ofaudit, we state that:

(i) Properlv. Plant:rnd Equipment (PPE)

a) Maintenance of proper records:

A) The company has generally been maintaining proper records shorving full
particulars including quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and

Equipment.

B) There are no Intangible Assets held by tlre company during the period

covered under audit. Therefore, reporting under clause (i)(a)(B) of para 3 of
the order is not applicable to the company.

b) The Management has physically verified its Prope4y, Plant and Equipment at

reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verificatron.

c) As per the standalone financial statements ofthe company, the company doesn't hold

any immovable properties Hence reporting on whether the title deeds of all the

immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name ofthe
company is not applicable.

d) During the year, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or
lntangible assets or both hance reporting on (a) rvhether the revaluation rvas based on

the valuation by a Registered Valuer: (b) amount ofchange and hence reporting under

this clause is not applicable.

e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pording against the company as at 31 Mar
2024 for holding any borami property rmder the benami transactions (Prohibition
Act), 1988 (a5 of 1988) and nrles made rmder. Hence reporting under clause (i)(e) of
para 3 ofthe order is not applicable.

(ii) Inventories

a) The management has carried out physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals and no disoepancies were noticed on verification betweor the physical
stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class

of inventory.

R ( Mutt Ro.d
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b) The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis ofsecurity
of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the order is not
applicable.

(iii) Investments, Gunrantee, Security, Loans or Advances b-v the Company:

a) During the year the Company has made loans in the naturc of unsccurcd loans to

companies aDd Limited Liability Parmerships. The aggregate amount oftransaction
during the year and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to loan
to holding company, subsidiary companies and others is mentioned in the tbllowing
table:

(Rs. in Million)

Guarantces

Advanccs in
thc nature ol'

Ioans

Aggrcgatc amount granted /
Providcd during the year: -

- Holding

- Subsidiary

- Joint Ventures

- Fellow Subsidiaries

- Others

1269.5',7

Bolance outstrnding as

at bahnce sheet date:

- Holding

- Subsidiary

- Joint Ventures

- Fellow Subsidiaries

- Others

332.65

26.71

b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and

conditions ofthe grant ofall loans and advances in the nature ofloans and guarantees

provided are not prejudicial to the company's interest.

.o

Particulars Sccurity Loans
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c) In respect ofloans and advanccs in the nature ofloans grantcd by thc Company, the

schedule of repaltnent of principal and the pa)mcnt of the interest has not bcen

stipulated and accordingly, we are unable to comment as to whether the

repayments/receipts of principal interest are regular.

d) In the absence of stipulated scheduie of repayment of principal and payment of
interest, we are unable to comment as to whether there is any amount which is

overdue for more than 90 days.

e) Since the term ofarrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule and the loans

are repayable on demand, no question ofoverdue amounts will arise in respect of the

loans granted to the parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 ofthe
Act.

f) The company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable

on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment aggregating to

Rs.1269.57 (in Million) (100% to the total loans and advances in the nature ofloans
granted during the year).

(v) Deposits

According to the information and explanation made available to us, the Company has not

accepted any deposis from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve

Bank oflndia and the provisions ofSections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Act and the Companies (Acccptance ofDeposit) Rules, 2015 regardilg to the dcposits

accepted from the public are not applicable and hence rcpofiing under clause 3(v) of the

order is not applicable.

{vi) Cost Records

The central govemment has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for the

company. Accordingly, Clause 3(vi) ofthe order is not applicablc.

villt Mfttr.
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(iv) Loan to Directors and Investment by the Compnny

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of loans, investments,

guarantees and security made. Funher, as the Company is engaged in the br"rsiness of
providing infrastructural facilities, dre provisions ofSection 186 [except for sub-section

1l are not applicable to the Company.
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(vii) Statutory Dues

a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,

undisputed stahrtory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,

income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as

applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by
the Company.

(Rs. in Millions)

Name of statute Nature of dues Amount
Period to which the

amount relates

CGST Act, 2017,

SGST Act, 2017
Interest on GST 2023-2024

CGST Act,2017,

SGST Act, 2017
Interest on GST 0.36 2022-2023

b) According to the information and explanation given to us and rccords of the company

examined by us, the particulars in respect of Employces provident fund, employees

statc insurance, income tax, goods & service tax, custom duty, cess and any other

statutory dues with appropriate authorities that have not deposited with the

appropriate authorities on account ofpending disputes are Nil as at March 31,2024.

(viii) Transactions not recorded in books have been surrendered or disclosed as

incomc during the year in income-tax assessments.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination

ofbooks ofaccounts, the company has not entered any transactions which is not recordcd

in books and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in income-tax

assessments. Hence reporting under clauses 3(viii) ofthe order is not applicable.

(ix) Repayment of Loans

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
explanation ofthe records ofthe company, the company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans or borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. Hence

reporting under clauses 3(ix)(a) ofthe order is not applicable.

b) According lo the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
explanation of the records of the company, the company is not declared as "willful
defaulter" by any banks or financial institutions or other lenders and hence repoting
under clauses 3(ix)(b) of the order is not applicable.
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c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination
ofbooks ofaccounls, the company has not availed any term loans and hence whethcr
term loans were applied for the purpose ofClause 3(ix)(c) ofthe order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and cxplanations given to us and based on our examination
ofbooks ofaccounts, the company has raised funds oD short term basis and such funds
were not utilized for long term basis.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination
ofbooks of accounts, the Company does not have any subsidiaries. associates orjoint
venture and hence reporting under clause 3(ixxe) and (f) ofthe order is not applicable.

(x) Utilization of Funds

a) The Company has not raised any mone)s by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under

clause 3(x)(a) ofthe order is not applicable.

b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement ofshares
(fully or partly or optionally convertible) during the year and hence reporting under

clause 3(x)(b) ofthe order is not applicable.

{xi) Rcporting of Fraud

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company
or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the year and hencc

reporting under clause 3(xi) (a) of the order is not applicable.

b) No report under sub-section (12) ofsection 143 ofthe Companies Act has been filed
by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed underrule 13 ofCompanies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Govemment and hence reporting under clausc

3(xi)(b) ofthe order is not applicable.

c) We are informed that no whistleblower complaints have been received during the ycar

and hence rcporting under clause 3(xi) (c) ofthe order is not applicable.

(xii) Nidhi Company

The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii)(a) to
3(xii)(c) ofthe order is not applicable.

AMN
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(xiii) Rclated Party Transnctions

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company, and according to the information and explanations given to
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us and based on our examination ofrecords ofthe Company, transactions with the related
parties arc in compliance with Section 188 of the Act and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv) Internal Audit

Internal audit under section 138 of fie companies act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder

is not applicable to the company and hence reporting ulder clause 3(xiv) of the order is
not applicable to the company.

(xvi) Registration undcr Reservc Bank of India Act, I934

a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA ofthe Reserve Bank

of lndia Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the order is not

applicable.

b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance

activities without a valid Certificate ofRegistration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause

3(xvi) (b) ofthe order is not applicable.

c) The company is not a Core Investrnent Company (ClC) as defined in the regulations

made by the Reserve Bank oflndia and hence reporting under clausc 3(xvi) (c) ofthe
order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion the

company does not have Core Investment Company (ClC) and hence reporting under

clause 3(xvi) (d) ofthe order is not applicable.

(xvii) Cash Losses

The company has not incurred any cash loss during the financial year and in thc

immediately preceding financial year, hence reporting under clause 3(xvii) of the order
is not applicable.

lihs Mantri
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(xv) Non-cash TransRctions with directors or persons conncctcd with him

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opilion during the year

the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its dircctors or persons

connected with its directors and hence provisions ofsection 192 ofthe Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the company.
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Resignntion of Auditors

There has been no resignation of any sta$tory auditors during the year and hence

reporting under clause 3(xviii) ofthe order is not applicablc.

Material Uncertalnty

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofthe financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanfng the Standalone financial Statements,

our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our

attention, which causes us to believe that any matefial uncenainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabitities cxisting at the date

ofbalance sheet as and when tbey fall due within a period of one year from the balance

sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability or
otherwise ofthe company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to

the date ofthe audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all

liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get

discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

Schedule VII to the Companies Act,2013

The company is not mandatorily required to engage in CSR activities as per Section 135

of Companies Act, 2013 and hence reporting under this clause 3(xx) of the ordcr is not

applicable for the year under audit.

Modified opinion (CARO) in othcr Group Companies

The reporting under paragraph 3(xxi) ofthe order is not applicable in respect of audit of
the Standalone financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said

paragraph has been included in the report.

Place: Chennai
Dnt(: 25-07-2024

For Vaithisvaran & Co LLP.

Chartered Accountanrs

FRN 004494S/S200037

R Sanjeev

Partner

Membership No: 245459
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Annexure B to the Independcnt Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragrnph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatorl
Requirements' section of our report to the Members of CASA GRANDE ZEST
PRMTE LIMITED of even date)

1. Report on the internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act,2Ol3 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of CASA

GRANDE ZEST PRMTE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction .xith our audit of the financial statemerlts of the Company for the year

ended on that date.

2. Management's Responsibility for [nternal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaiuing intemal

financial controls based on the intemal control over financial repo(ing criteria

established by the Company corrsidering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of fiauds and errors. the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the tinrely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

3. Auditor'sResponsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by

ICAI and deemed to be prescnbed under section 143(10) ofthe Companies Act. 2013,

to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Intemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants oflndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting

was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respects.

lltnll.
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Vaithisvaran&Co LLP
Chrrtered lccotnlrnts

adequacy ofthe internal financial controls systcm over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reponing includcd obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls ov€r
financial rcporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exisls, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to iiaud or enor'.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sullcient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financia'l conlrols
system over financial reporting.

4. i\Ieaning oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Rcporting

A company's intcmal hnancial control ovcr financial reporting is a process designcd

to provide reasonablc assurance regarding thc reliability of financial rcpofling and

the preparation of financial statements for cxtcrnal purposes in accordancc rvith
gencrally acceptcd accounting principles. A company's internal financial control ovcr
financial reporting includes those policies ancl procedures tlat

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurrtcly and

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions ofthe assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions arc rccorded as necessary to
permit preparation offinancial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles, and that reccipts and cxpcnditures of thc company arc

being made only in accordancc with authorizations ofrnanagcment and directors

of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurancc regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, u.se, or disposition of dre company's asscts that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

5. Inhcrcnt Limitations oflntcrnal Financial Controls Over Financial Rcporting

Because ofthe inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
inchding the possibility of collusion or improper rnnnagcmcnt override of controls.
material misstatements due to error or fraud mav occur and not be detected. Also,
projections ofany evaluation ofthe intemal hnancial controls over financial rcporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial conhol over financial
reporting may become inadequate becaue ofchanges in conditions, or that the degrec of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Vil.! Manf aI t249
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Vaithisvaran&Co ItP
[[adercd Accounlants

(r. Opinion

In our opinion, thc Company has, in all material rcspccls. an adcquatc intcmal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such intemal t'inancial controls ove.r financial
reporting wcrc opcrating effcctivcly as at March 3l, 2024, based on the internal control
ovcr financial rcporting critcria cstablished by the Company considcring thc cssential

components of intemal control statcd in the Guidance Notc on Audit of Intemal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by thc Institute of Chartcrcd Accountants ol
India.

For Vaithisvaran & Co LLP,
Chartercd Accountants
FRN ()O44

\
Placc: Chennai
Datet 25-07-2024 R Sanjecv

Partner
Membcrslr ip No: 2,1

UDtN:2+454sqaKgGUAbqe2-
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Casi Grandc Zest Prir,ate l,imited
Balance Shcct as il lrarch 11.20:.4
(AlluDtou ts orc u .Villions, wtlc.ts otlutwisc skttKl)

l'arliculars Nlarch 3l 2021 NIarch 3l 2021

Non-currcnl rsseti
Property, plant and equipment

Financial.sscts
Other financial assets

Othcr assets

Deferred tax assets (nel)

Currort tssels
ldventories

Fin.nci.l rsscts
Trade reccivables

Cash and casb equivalenls

Bank balances othcr than cash and cash

equivalents

Loans
Other financial ass€ls

Other currmt assets

Tolal assets

Equity and liebilities
Equitl'
Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equit)

Non{urrent lirbilitles
Finrncirl lirbiliti€s

Borrowings

Other fi nancial liabilities
Defened lax liabilities (net)

25.23

3.22

60.44

132.01

3

5

6

1

3.46

15.84

0.01

4.17

9.07

0.t9
r9.33 t1.03

8 '7 43 .90

0.0r

359.42

671.77

t4.39

1,280.13

45.00

9

l0

II
4
5

6

t,223.94
297.88

7.t8
1,817.94 3,046.78

I,431.27 3,060.1

l3
l4

0.10

392.52

0.10

39.94

392.62 10.01

l5
l6

7

r 15.38

41.53

376.90

0.37

162.91 317.21

Vil.s
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Casa Grandc 7-est Pri\atc Limitcd
Balancc Shcet rs at March 31,2024
(AU anonts oc tn Millions, unless otheh,i:e stured)

I'articulars Nrarch 3t 7021 l\larch ll 2023
Ctrrren.lirbitili€s
Financirl liabilitl€s

Borrowings
Trade payablcs

Dues to micro small and medium enterprises

Dues to others

Other fi nancial liabililies
Other current liabilities
Liabilities for current tax (net)

For V.ithisvann & Co LLP
Chartered Accounlants

Firm Registralion Number : 0044945/3200037

R srnjeev Kumrr

Panner

MembershipNumber : 245459

Place : Chennai

Da:rc :25-01-2024

ls

l8
l8
t6
t1
t2

t.369.04

45.3t
50.44

220.91

956.38

t.42

50.04

48.14

788.03

12.95

54.60

I,241.11 ____zq!l0
To(al lirbilirics

Total equily rnd lisbilities

Thc accompanying notes form an integral pan ofthe financial statcnrcits

As per our report ofcven date

1.441.65 1,020.11

I,437 -27 3.060.81

For.nd on behrlfofthe Bosrd ofDirectors of
Crsr Gr.nde Z..t Privrt€ Limited
CIN : U74999TN20l6PTCl 12861

Grutrm Ag.rwrrl

Director
DIN:03064660

Chrkr.v.rthy
Goprl.n Srthish
Director
DIN:090E6214

Place : Chennai

Date :25-01 -2024

Place : Chennai

Dale :25-07-2024

R ( Mltl8o.d
M.ndav.lF28

Vilat Manlr.
Towe.t r249

CHENNAI
o

S

*

I

m

267.98

K,



Cas:l Grande Zcs( Prirrt( Lirritcd
Slatemcnt of Profit and Loss tur (hc ! 'jar 

rnded t\tarch -1t, 202J
(All amowis arc in Millions. unless otherwisc

Prrlicuhrt For thc rear cndcd
Mrrch.ll.202{

For lhc verr endrd
Nla rch f l. 202.1

fncom€

Revcnue from contracts with customers

Other income

Total income

2,O53.20

221.59

t9
20

t0.89

2.17

2.2U0-79 13.06

Experse6

Cost ofraw materials, componenG and stores consumed

Construction activity expats€s

(Increasey decreasc in stock of flals. land stock and work-in-
progress and traded goods

Financc costs

Depreciation and amonization expensc

Other cxpcnses

Total cxpenres

Prollr06s) bcfore trx
(l ) Culrent tax
(2) Defen€d tax chargd(credit)
Income lar cxpensc

Proflt/ooss) for the yc.r

Tot.l comprchersive incohe for th€ yerr, net oftrx

Ermlngs par shara

Basic, compulcd on the basis of profit for thc ycar (In l)

Diluted, computcd on (he basis ofprofit for the ycar (In a)

As par our report ofeven date

For Vrithl.v.r.r & Co LLP
Chaftrcd Accountanb
Firm Rcgistration Number : 0044945/5200037

R Ssnjeev Kumrr

Partncr

Membdship Numbcr : 245459

Place : Chennai

Da,a .2547-2024

t72.44

1,051.50

I16.6r

198.20

2t

22

23

24

25

26

27

27

o.72

1.46

0.91

585.79

4.69

t.45

0.95

(914.81)

1.816,82 3.09

467.97

63.61

47.72

l llJ9

9.97
2.E3

(0.r9)
2.64

352.5E

352.58 7.ll

35,258

35,25E

For .nd on behrlfof (hc Borrd of Directors of
Cssa Grrnde Zrst P vrte Limited
CIN : U74999TN20l6PTC I 12R51

28

Gsutrm Agrrwml Ch.kr.vrrthy
Gop.hn Srthish
Dircclor
DIN: 09086214

't33

733

Director
DIN: 030d1660

Place : Chcnnai

Dat | 25-0'l-2024
Place : Chennai

Date | 25-07-2024

Vih! Mantr.

R X Mull Bold
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Cas. Grrnde Zcst Privzae Limircd
St.tcmcn. ofCrsh tlows for the ye.r €ndcd M.rch ll, 2024

4 a ,,unts arc in MillioLt. u less olrcruLre stoted)

Particulars
2024 March 3l 2023

()peruting activiti€s
I'rofit/(loss) before lax

Adjastm.nts to r.co,rcilc ptoftt b4o?. ,o, to nct cash lous
Depr€cialion and amonisation expenses

Dividcnd income

Firunce costs

lyor*idg capital.djwfit.rB :
( Incrcascydccrcasc in lradc rc.civablcs
(hcrcascydccreasc in inventory
(lncrcascydecrease in olhcI financial asscts

(lncreascydecrcase in otha curcnt asscts

Incr@scf(dccrease) in tradc paFbles

Increasd(decrease) in olher linancial liability
Increasd(decrease) in other current liability
C$h gelerrtcd from operrting rctlvltlaa
Incom€ tax (paid)/refunded

N.t cllh flows frorD(urcd lD) oparadng acdvllles

463.96 9.97

1.46
(r35.44)

(0.03)

t9l.6l

1.45

1226.77)
(0.07)

2|.52

35.21

536.43
( r61.79)

(1.22)
2.42

437.41

(883.,{4)

(60.44)

(902.40)
(9.s71

4.29

81.31

16.35

955.94

409.11 159.1|
(10.49) (23.72',)

198.62 t35.39

Itrvcsdog rctMtlcs
Purchas€ ofpmpetty, plant and equipmcnt
Loan given to related parti€s

Movcmcnt in bark d@6its (maturity of morr rhan 3 monrhs)

Dividcnd Income

lotcrest received (6naDcc itrcomc)

Nct c.rh flows froE(u..d h) irv6dnt rctMti.s

Iin.ncing .ctMd.s
Intcr6l paid

Proceeds ftom long t€In bonowitrgs
Rcpaymcnt of long term bonowings
Procccds(rcpaFcnt) from shor (.rm borowings
Nct crsh llows from/(urcd ln) fi[rrclng .ctlvitics
Net incrc2se in cash and cash equii,alenls

Net foreign excharrge differorcc
Cash and cash cquivalents at dlc beginninS of th. ycar

Crsh rnd c.rh cquivdert! yerr cod

As per our raon of even date

R Srnjcev Kumrr

Paftrcr
Mcmbcrship Numbd : 245459

Placc : Chcnnai

Dat'.2541-2021

| 32.01

3.22

2.78

132.01

(0.13)

464.52

44.99

0.07
7.90

(4.s)
(-714.57)

0.03

6.93

t7t2.2sl

(82.r8)
(255.02)

(r,r 07.56)

(57.33)

430.00
(59.60)

393.02
(.444.16\

(t28.79) 129.2i

For Vdthkvrrro & Co LLP
Cla(cred Accqutants
Firm RcgisEation Numb€r : 0044995200037

for rrd on bahrlf of thc Borrd of Dircctors of
Crsr Grrnd. Zc.t Privrt. Llrdt.d
CIN : U74999TN20I6PTC I 12861

v
r'

Gru(.m Chrkrrvrrthy
Goprlrn Srthish
Director
DIN: 09086214

Director
DIN: 030d1660

Yil.t Mrn taI I24II K Mu I Ro ad
Msnd 2
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Place : Chcnnai

Dat :25-01-2024
Placc : C'hennai

Dzte :25-07-2024
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C.sr Crrndc Zest PriINte l-imited
Statement of Chatrges itr Eq ity for thc ye.r ended M.rch I l. 2024

6ll antou ts arc in Miqiotls, l, ess otheryisc statcd)

.. Equity shrrc capital
\umbers

Equity shares of{10 eech issued, subscribcd end fully peid

As .t April0l, 2022

Issue of share capital

As rt Mrrch 31, 2023

Equity sh.res of{10 c.ch lssu€d, subscdb.d .nd fully p.id
As.t April0l,2023
Issue of share capital

As.t Mrrch 31,2024

b. O(hcr equity

10.000 0.10

10.000

10,000

0.10

0.10

10.000 0.10

Debcnturc
redrmption

Ret.ined
earnings

Total

As rtApril0l,2022
Profit / (loss) for the period

Total comprehensive incoEe (loss)

As .t Mrrch 31, 2023

As.t Aprtl0l,2023
Profit / (loss) for the pcriod

Total comprEhcnsivc income (loss)

As rt Ilrtch 31,2024

As per our report of even dale

For Vrithisv.rrtr & Co LLP
Chanercd Accou ants

Fimr Rcgistratiod Nu6ber : 0044945,5200037

R SrnJeev Kurnrr

Partsler

M.rnbqship Numbcr : 245459

Plac€ : Chamai
Drt .2547-2024

39.94

352.58

352.s8

39,94

352.58

352.5t

32.6t
7.31

733

32.61

733
733

19.94 39.91

Trensrctions *ith o{ner., recorded it| equity
Addition/(Transfer to reserves) 10.89 (r 0.89)

10.89 3fi.63

For rnd orl behrlfoftha Bo.rd of Dircctots of
Crsr Grrnde Zeit Privrtc Llmitcd
CIN : U 74999TN20l6PTC I l2E6l

,

G.utam Agrrwr.l Chrknvrrthy
Gopd.E Srtbish
Director
DIN:090E6214

Director
DIN: 03064660

Place : Chennai

Date :25-01-2024
Place : Chennai

Da:( . 25-01 -2024

Mantra
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l.Corpor.te informrtloh
Casa Grande Zesr Privare Limited (the 'Company') was incorporated on 6 October, 2016 under the provisions of the Companies

Act applicable in lndia ("AcC') The registered olficeis located atNPL Devi, No ll l, L.B.Road, Thiruvarunilur, Ch€nnai600Ml.

Crsr Grande Zelt Privrte Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year €nded 3l March 2024
(,lll amounrs are in Millions, unlcss oth?ru,s. tutted)

The Company is cngagcd primarily in thc business of rcal estatc construclions. d€velopment and other relaled aclivities in lndia.

Thc financial statemmls were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution oflhe directors on 25 l\t1y.2024.

2.Mrterirl .ccounting poliries

This Eote provides a list of the Matfiial accounting policies adopted in the prepanlion of the financial stalemmls. Thq(e policiqs

have becn consistartly applied to all the periods prescnt.d, unlcss otherwise slaled.

2.1 Briis ofprep.ntion
In accordanc€ with thc notification issucd by fte MCA, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified

under scction 133 ofthc Act, read with the Companics 0ndian Accounling Slandards) Rules, 2015, as arncnded and presentalion

rcquircments ofDivision II ofSchcdule III to lhe Companies Acl 2013 (lnd AS compliant Schedulc llD.
The standalone financial statcments of the Corpany are prcparEd and prrsentcd in accordance with Ind AS. The standalore

financial statemcnls havc bc€.rl prepalcd on thc historical co6t basis, cxccpt for ccnain financial inslruments which arc mcasurcd al

fair l,alues at the cnd ofcach reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is gcnerally based on

the fair value of the considaation given in cxcharge for goods &nd sdviccs-

2.2 Summrry ofother Mrterirl rccounting policies

(.) Use of€stihrtes

The preparation of financiat slatemcnts in conformity with lnd AS reqlires the rnanagement to m4ke judSments, estimates and

assumptions that allecl the reported amounts ofrevenues, expcnses, asscls and liabilitiG and the disclosue ofcontingent liabalities,

at the end of the reporting period. Although thcs€ estimates sre based on the rnarBscheot's best knowledge of current evcrlls and

actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and cstimales could rcsult in lhe outcom€s rcquiring a matqial adjusthent to (hc

carrying arnounts of assets or liabilities. Thc ellect ofchange in an accounting cstimate is recognized prospectively.

(b) Currcnt versus non{ottcnt chsslfic.tior
The Company prcscnts ass€ls and liabilitics in the balance shcet based on currctry' non-cur€nt classification.

An assct is treated as currcnt whct it is:

- Expected to bc realized or intanded to bc sold or consumcd in normal operating cyclc

- Held prirnarily for thc purposc oft'ading
- Expectei to be rcalizcd within twelvc months afls thc repotting period, or
- Cash or cash cquilElcnt unlcss restricted from being cxchanged or us€d to settlc a liability for at least twelve months aftcr the

rcponing period

All othcr ess€6 are classified as non-curreil

A liability is curr€nt when:

- lt is exp€ctEd to bc s.ttled in nonml operating cyclc
- It is held primarily for lhe purposc of trading

- It is duc to be scttlcd within twclve rnonths aftcr the reporting p<f,iod, or
- Thcrc is no unconditional righ( to dcfcr thc settlement ofrh. liability for at l.sst twclvc monlhs aftcr the r?orting p€riod

All other liabilities are classilied as non-current.

Thc operating cycle is thc hme b.twecn the acquisition ofass€ts for procGsing and their r.llisatio[ in cash and cash equivalents.

Thc opcrating cyclc of the Compatrys r.al estate operations varies from project to project dcpeEdiDg on the size of the project, typc
of devclopmcnt, projcct complcxities and rclatcd approvals. Accordingly, project reletcd asscts and liabilities arc classificd into
curcnt and non-current bas€d on the opcraling cycle ofthe prcject. AII other assets and liabilitics havc bccn classificd into cun.nt
and noncuftat bascd on a period oftwelve rDonths.

Dcfered tax assets/ liabilities are classificd as non-current asscts/ liabilities.

(c) Property, plrnt rnd squlpmcnt
All prop.rty, plant and cquipment exc.pt fieehold land ar. stalcd at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The cosl
comprisc purchasc pric., import duties, non-refundable taxas, borrowing costs if capilalization criteria are met and dire.tly
attributabl. cost ofbrinSing the assct to its working conditioD for the inteoded use. Any tradc discounts and rebates are deducled in
arriving al thc purchase price.

l'!arda/eli-28
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Casa Grande 7.est Prir.e(e l,imited
Nofes to financial s(atements for the year ended 3l Mrrch 2024
(All utnounrt arc tu Millions. unless othe ist sttt.d)

Each part of an item of property, planl and equipment *ith a cost thal is significanr in relarion to rhe total cosl of rhe itcm is
depreciated separately. This applies mainly to componmts for machinery. when significant parts of plant and equipmenr are
requircd to bc rcplaccd at intcrvals, lhc Company dcprcciatcs them sc?aratcly bascd on thcir spccific uscful livcs. Likcwisc, whcn .
major inspection is pcrformed, ils cost is recognized in the carD/ing arnount ofthc plant and equipment as a rcplacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintmance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Subscquent expenditure relalcd to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increatG fie future
bcnefits from its prwiously assessed standard of pcrforrnance. All other cxpcnses on existing property, plant and cquipment,
including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost ofreplacing pans, are chargcd to the statement ofprofit and loss
for lhe period during which such expcnses are incuned.

Borrowillg costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and cquipment which tate subsla[tial period of time lo 8er
ready for its intcnded use arE ,lso included lo the ext€nt thcy rclale to thc period till such ass€ts are ready ro bc put to use.

Advances paid lowards thc acquisition of property, plant snd equipment outstanding a! each balance sh€et date is classifi€d as

capitel advallcB urder other non-current assets.

An itcm ofproperty, plant ard equipment and any significant part ioitially r€cognized is de-Ecognizcd upon disposal or whan no
fututc cconomic bcncfib ar. cxpected from ils use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on dc-recognition of the ass€t (calculatcd as

lhe differencc betwccn the ncl disposal procccds and lhc caftying amount oflhc a.ssct) is includcd in thc incomc statcmcnt whcn thc
Propcrty, plant and equipment is de-recognized.

Expcnditurc dirEctly rclating to coDstsuction activity is capilalised. Indirect cxpGldiore incurred during consurction period is
capitalised to the cxtcnt to which thc expenditure is indirectly relatcd to construclion or is incidcntal thcreto. Other indirect
expcnditur. (including borrowing costs) incured during thc constsuction p6iod which is not related to thc construction activity
nor is incidcnLl thcrao is charged to the stalemetrt ofprofit and loss.

Costs of assc6 not rcady for use at thc balancc sheet date arc discloscd under capital work- in- progr6s.

(d) Deprecl.tlon on property, pl.nt rnd equipment.

D?reciation is calculated on written do*'rl value rllcthod usin8 the following useful lives estimated by the nanagement, which are

equal to lhosa prGcribcd undcr Schcdulc II lo the CoDpani6 Act, 2013, cxcapt c€rtaitr categories of assets whose uscful lif. is
estimated by the managernent based on planned usa8e and lerhnical evaluation thereon:

Asscts Useful life
Buildings 60
Tm)porary Struc$res 3

Fumiture & Frtlings l0
Plant&Machincry-Civil l2-15
Oflice Equipment 5

Vehiclcs 8-t 0

Computers l
ServeE and network equipmmt 6

L€aschold irnpmvenEnts ala anprtiscd over thc remaining p6iod of l€ase or lheir astirnatcd uscful lifc (10 ycars), whichever is

shorter.

Thc r.si(fual valu6, usrful livcs and methods of d.preciation of prope(y, plant and equipment dnd inv.stment property arc
revicwcd at cach fuBncial ycar ad aDd adjusted prospectivcly, ifappropriate.

(c) Intrnglblc rsscG

Intangiblc asscts acquirEd s.patalely arc rncasurEd on initial rcaognition at cost Following inilial rEcognition, intsngiblc aascts arc
caricd at cost lcss accurnulat d arnortization and accumulated impairment losscs, ifsny.
IntaDgible &sscls comprisiDt of comput€r software arc amonized usiDS writtcn dowD yalue method over a pcriod of three years,
which is estirnat€d by lhe nranagchent to be thc useful life ofthe assa.
Thc rcsidual valucs, uscflrl lives and methods of anrnizatiod of iotaDgible assets ara revicwcd at cach financial ycar end and
adjustcd prospcclivcly, if Apropnalc.

Gains or loss6 arising from dc*.recognition ofan intangible asset are rncasur.d 6s thc differcncc bGwccn the nct dispossl procccds
atrd 6c crrryhg armuot ofthc ass€t alld a.c rc.ognizcd in ihc strtcrncnt ofprofit and loss when assct is dcrecognized.

(f) ItrY6tm.rt prcpcrty

The Prog.rty tbat is hcld for long term r€ntal yicld or for capilal appr€ciation or both, and that is nor occupied by thc Conpary is
classilicd as aD Inv6unctt ProPctty. Invcstnent propcrties arc rrcasurcd initially at cosr, including transaction costs. Subscqueni lo
initial rccognition, invcstment propcrtiG arc slatd at cost less accumulatcd dcprccistion and accumulatcd irnpairmeat loss, iiany.
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Casa Grunde Zest Privale Limited
Notes to financirl statements for the y€ar endcd 3l March ,024
(A anounts arc in Millions, unless othent ise sta

The cost includes the cosl ofreplacing pans and borrowing costs for Iong-term conslruction projects ifrh€ recognition criteria are
met. When significant pans of the investment property are required ro be replaced at intervals. the ComF,any depreciatcs rhem
scparatcly based on lhcir spccific uscful livcs. All othcr repair and mainrcnance costs arc rctognizcd in profit or loss as incurrcd.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capilalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is
capilalised to thc cxtcnl lo which thc expcnditurc is indircctly relatcd lo conslruction or is incidmtal thercto. Other indircct
expcndinrre (including borrowing costs) incurr€d during th€ construction period which is not rclaled to the construction activity
nor is incidental thcreto is charged lo the sta(ement ofprofit and loss.

Invcshcnt propcni€s arc de-recognized whefl lhc entity lransfers control of the samc to the buyer. Funher thc entity also
derecognises investmenl properties when thcy arc permancntly wilhdratrT from use and no future economic bencfit is exp€cted
from thcir disposal. The differencc bctwecn thc nct disposal prccceds and the carrying armunl ofthe asset is rccognized in prorit or
loss in thc period ofde-rccognition.

Reclassification from /to investmcnl property Transfers to (or from) investsnent property are made only whcn theae is E change i,
use. Tmnsfets bctw€6 invcstncnt property, owncr-occupid propt ty and invcntories do not change the carrying amounl of the
property transfeGd and they do not ch?rngc thc cost ofthat property for mcrsur.m.n! or disclosurc purpos6.

(g) Imp.lrment

A. Finsnciel rsscts

The Cornpany ass€sscs at cach darc ofbalancc shect whclher a financial ass€t or a Company offinancial assc6 is imf,aired- Ind AS
I09 requires expectcd crcdit loss€s lo be measured through a loss allowance. The Compsny recognizes lifetime expccted losscs for
all contract asscts and / or all trade r.c€ivablcs that do not constitute a financing transactioD. For all otber finaDcial ass€ts, cxp€cted
credit loss€s ale meas.urEd at an arnount equal to thc l2-[rcnth expecrcd credit loss€s or at an ainouDt cqual !o lhe lifc time expected
crcdit losses iflhe credit risk on the financial asset has increascd significanlly sincc initial reogrition.

B. Nor-fhrnclrl rssets

The Company assesses at cach r@oning datc whethq there is an indication $at an assct Inay b€ impaired. Ifany indication cxisls,
or whcn annual irnpairmcnt testing for a.n assct is rcquired, thc Company cstimates thc asscl's rccovcmblc arnoun!. An asse!'s
recoverablc amounl is thc higher of an ass€t's or cash-Smeraling unil's (CCU) net sclling price and its valuc in usc. The
recoverablc arDunt is detcrmined for an individud asset. unless thc asset do€s not genaate cash inflows that arc largely
ind@cndent of rhose ftom olhet assets or Conpany's of asscts. Where the carrying amoutrt of an ass€t or CGU excceds its
rccoverable amount, the assct is considered impairod aDd is written down to its r€coverable arnount. In assessing valuc in use, the
cstirMtcd ftture crsh flows ar€ discountcd to lheir prEsert value using a pre-tax discount ratc tiat reflecls cunent msrket
asscssmcn6 of the timc value of moncy aIld thc risks specific to thc assct. In dctcrmining net selling price, r€c€nt market
t ansactions arc talen into account, ifavailsblc. Ifno such Fansactions can be idcntificd, an appropriatc valualion model is uscd.

lEpaimml losscs arc recosDized in thc statcmeut of profit aDd loss. After ianpaimleltt, d€preciation is provided oD the revised
carryhg anount ofthe aslct ovei ils rcmaidng uscflrl lifc.

(h) Le.,o.
Thc Coopatry assdsas at confacl iocaption whethq a concact is, or contaiDs, a leas€. That is, if the contract convcys thc right to
control tbc usc ofaD identificd asset for a pcriod of timc io <rchange for coosidtration.

Whera lba CoEp.ry ir lcsJ.e
A cootract is, or cmtaiDs, a lcase ifthe coDEact iLolv6 -
i- The usc ofan idcntified assct,

ii. Thc right to obtrh subst ntially all rhe cconomic b.acfits &om use of rhc iddrtificd assct, and
iii. Thc rigbt to dircct the usc ofthe id.ltificd as.set.

Thc Company applies a single recognitioD snd rneasurcrrle rt approach for all lcas6, sxccpt for short-tcrm lcas€s and lcases oftow-
valuc assc6. Thc Corpany rccogniscs lcasc liabilitics to rnatc lcrse paymcnts and right-of-use assas rq[tscnting thc right to use
lhc undarlying .ssds.

A. Rlgtt-of-usc ..r.t!
The Corpany .Gcosnises riSbt-of_usc assds at thc commcnccmcn! datr of the lcasc (i.c., the datc lhc undcrlying assct is available
for use) Right-of_use asscts are mcasurcd st cost, lcss any ac.cumutatcd depreciation and impairftant losscs, ar-d adjusted for any
rcmaasurdncnt of lcas€ liabiliries Thc cost of right-of-us€ asscts includcs thc arDunt of lcase liabilities recoglis€d-, initid di;
costs incu,rEd, and lcasc paymeots rnadc at or bcforr thc commcncerncnt date less any leasa incantivcs rec€ivcd. Right-of-usc assets
arc deprccirtcd on a straiSht-linc basis over lhe shortcr ofthc lcasc term and the estimated uscful livcs of6e ass€ts,
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Casa Grsnde Zest Private Limited
Notes to financial st.tements for the year ended Jl M.rch 2024
(All amounts ure Millions, unless othet\is! sk ed)

Ifowncrship oflhe leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease tcnn or th€ cosl r€llecls rhe exercise of a purchas€
oplion, d€pr€ciation is calculated using rhe estirnated useful life ofthe asser.

The righGof-use asse6 are also subject to imparrment.

B. Le.sc lirbilities
A( (he commenccmmt date ofthe lease, (he Company recognises lcase liabilities measured at thc presmt valuc of lease payments to
bc rnadc ovcr thc lcase tcrm. The lczsc paymmls includc fixed paymenls (including in subslance fixcd paymcnts) lcss any leasc
incentives receivablc, variable leasc paymeflls that depcnd on an index or a Ertq and amounE cxpected !o be paid under residual
value guarantees. Thc leas€ payments also iDclude the exercise price ofa purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and Payments of penalties for teminating thc lcasc, if the lcas. term rell€cis thc Company exercising thc option to
lerminate. Variablc l.as€ paFncnls thal do not dcp€nd on an indcx or a rate are recognised as cxpenscs (unless thcy arE incufted to
produce inventorics) in the period in which thc cvent or condition that triggers the pa)ment occurs.

ln calculating the prcsent value of Ieas€ payments, the Company uscs its incranental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date becausc the inier€st ralc implicil in the lease is not rcadily deterrninable. After the commencement date, the amount of leasc
liabilities is incrcasad to rcflccl the acfietion of intcrest and rcduc.d for lhe lcase payments made. In addition. the carrying arnount
of lease liabilities is rcmeasured if thcrc is a modi{ication, a cllange in thc lcase term, a changc in the lease payments (e.g.. changes
to future payhents resultinS from a change in an index or ralc used to detEmine such lcase paym€nls) or a change in lhe
assessment of aa option to purchasc the und€rlying asset.

C. Shora-tcrm leascs rnd larses oflo*-vtlue assets

Thc Corpany applics lh€ sbon-lerm leas€ r.cogrition cxcoption to its short-tefln lcascs i.e., those lcascs rhat havc a leasc tcrm of
I 2 moDtbs or less from thc comnencement date and do Dot conlain a purchase optioD. It also appliG the lcasc of low-value asscts
recognition cxemPtion to lcases that are considcrcd to bc low valuc. Leasc payments on shon-t6m le3s6 and lcases of low-value
a!,sals arc rccogniscd as expcnse on a straight-linc basis ovcr the laase !€fln,

Wher€ th€ CoiDprtry Is the lessor

t€ases in which lhc CoEpany docs Dot tmDsfo slbstantially all thc risk and rcwards incidcntal to ow!6ship of thc ass€t alc
classified as operating leascs. Assets subject to operatirg lc.se6 are includcd under Investment property.

Leas€ income from op.r'ating lcasc is recoghizcd on a st-aiSbtlinc basis ovcr the term ofthc r.leva.nt lcas€ including l.asc ioconrc
on fair value of refirndable sccurity dcposits, unlcss thc le3se agrecment cxplicitly statcs rhat increasc is on account of inflation-
Costs, including d.preciation, are recogniz€d as an cxpcnse in the statemm! of profit and loss. Initjal direct costs inclrred in
ncgotiatiag and arranging an opcrating lease arc added to ltc carDring amount ofthe lcased assa afld recognised ovcl the lease term
on the same basis as relltal incomc,

(l) Borowlbt co3t!
Borrowing costs consist of intcr.sl snd other costs that an cntity incurs in conoaction wi(h the borrowing offunds.

Borrowing costs dircc y attributablc to the acquisition, construction or production ofan assa ftat neccssrily t kes a substantial
Paiod of timc to 8ct ready for its intcnded usc or salc arc capitslizcd/inv.nlorisad as pan of6c cost of the respectivc assct. All
oth€r borrowing costs are charged ro strtement ofprofit alld loss.

Thc Cornprny trcats ss part of 8€n.i-al borrDwings any boroving origiDally rrBde to dcvelop a qualirying asset wh.o substantially
all oflhc activitics ncc.ssary to pftpare that asscr for its intcodcd usc or salc &c completc.

0) hv.ntoric.
Direct cxpcnditurE rclatinS to rEal 6tatc activity is invenioriscd. Othcr expcnditurc (including borrowing co6ts) during construction
period is invcntoriscd to lhc crtcflt lhe cxperditure is diracdy attributable cosl of bringing lhc assat to its working condition for its
intcndcd use. Othcr.rPcrdinrc (including botrowiDs coats) incunEd during the constsuction pctiod which is not direcdy
attibutablc for bringing ftc assa to ils workin8 condition ffi its inlcndcd usc is charged to thc rtatcrncnl of profit snd loss. Direct
and othcr cxpeDditure is detcnnhed bascd on spccific idaotification to lhc rcsl .state acrivity.

i. Work-in_Progr6s: Rcpr6cnb cost incunrd in rEspcct of uNold arca (including land) of thc rcal 6tstc dcvclopmcnt projccts or
cost incuncd on !,rojccts whcrc the rcvcnue is ycl to be rccogDizcd. Work-in-progr€ss is %lucd at lowcr ofcost and net rcalizable
valuc.

ii. Finishcd goods - Slock ofFlats: Valued at lowcr ofcost and nct rcalizablc lBlue.
iii. Raw materials, corlponcnts and stores: Vdued at lowcr of cost and nct realizablc valuc. Cost is dctcrmined based on FIFO
basis.

iv. Land srockr Valucd at lowcr ofcost and net rcalizable valuc.

Nct rcalizablc valuc is lhe cstirDatcd sclling pricc in lhc ordihary course of business, Iess cstimatcd costs of completion and
6tirnatcd cosls DeccssaDr to rnak€ thc sale.
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(k) L.nd
Advances paid by the Company to the seller/ inlermediary toward outright purchase of land is recognized as land advance under
other assets during lhe course ofoblaining clear and marketable title, ftee from all encumbmnces and transfer of legal title ro the
Company, whereupon it is transferred to land stock under inventories/ capital work in progress.

Land/ development rights receiv€d undcr joint devclopmenl arangements ('JDA') is m€asured at the fair value of th€ eslimated
construclion service rcndqed to thc land owncr slrd thc samc is accouoted on launch ofthc projccl. Thc smount of non-rcfundablc
deposil paid by the Company under JDA is recognized as land advance under other assets and on the launch of the projecl, the non,
refirndable amounl is tmnsferred as land cost to work-in-pmgresg capital work in progress. Further, the amount of refundable
deposit paid by the Company under ,DA is recognized as deposits under loans.

Crsa Grrnde Zest Privrte Limited
Notes to finencial strtemetrts for th€ vear ended 3l M.rch 2024
(All anounrs are in Millions, unless otheftrise sto

(l) Revenue rc.ognitlorl
A. Rcvenue recognition
{. (i) RcveDue from coDtracts with customers

Revenue from contmcts with customers is recognised when contlol ofthe goods or seryices are [ansfened to the customer at an
amount thal reflecls the considemlion to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Revenue is measurcd based on the transaclion price, which is the coDsideration, adjusled for discounls and olher credits, ifany, as
sP€cified in the contract with the cuslomer. The Company presents revenue from contmcts with custorners net of indirect taxes in
its statement ofprofit and loss.

The Company considers whether lhere aie other promises in the conhacl thal are separale performance obligations to which a
portion ofthe transaction price needs to be allocated. ln determining lhe transaction price, the Company consialers the effects of
variable consideration, the existence ofsignificant financing cornponenls, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the
customer, ifany.

Revenue from rcal estate development of residential unit is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset is
traDsferred to the customer, which generally coincides with transfer of phrsical possession of tie residential unit to the customer
ie., handover/ deemed handover of the residential units.

Revcnue consists of sale of uodivided share of lard aod conslructed area to the customer, wbich have beeo identified by the
Company as a single performance obligation, as they are highly interrelated/ interdependent.

The performalce obligalion in aelation to real estate development is satisfied upon completion of project work and rransfer of
control ofthe asset lo lhe customer.

For contrac6 involving sale of real estale unit, the Company receives the consideration in accordance with the lerms of the contract
in proponion of lhe percenlage of compledon of such real estate project alld represeDts paytents mad€ by customem to secue
performance obligation of the Company under the contract enforceable by customers. Such consideration is aeceived and utilised
for sp€cific real eslate projects in accordance with the requirements ofthe Real Eslate (Regulalion and Dev€lopment) Act,2016.
Consequenlly, the Company has concluded that such contracts with customerc do not involve any financing element since the same
arises for reasons explained above, which is other than for provision offinance lo/from the customer.

Furthcr, for projects cxccuted through joint devclopmcnt arrangcmcnts not bcing joiotly controllcd operadons, whcrcin thc land
owner/possessor provides land and the Company undertakes to develop properties on such land and in lieu ofland owner providing
land, thc Company has agreed to lransfer certain percentage ofconstnrcted area or cerlain percentage ofthe revenue proceeds, the
reveDue ftom the development atrd tramfer of conslrucled ares/ rcvenue sharing arrangement in exchange of such developmeot
rights/ land is being accounted on goss basis on launch ofthe project, Revenue is recognised over time using input method, on the
basis of the inputs to lhe satisfaclion of a performance obligation relalive to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that
performanc€ obligalion.

The revenue is measured at the fair value ofthe land received, adjusted by the amount ofany cash or cash equivalents transferred.
When the fair value of the land received cannot be measued reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value ofthe estimated
construction service rendered to the land owner, adjusted by the amount ofany cash or cash equivalcnts tmnsferred. The fair value
so estimaled is considered as the cost of land in the computation of percentage of completion for lhe purpose of revenue
recognition as discussed above.

Recogrltlor ofreve[ue from sale ofhnd rnd developme rlghts:
Revenue from sale ofland and development rights is reaognised upon transfer ofall significant risks and rewards ofownership of
such real cstatdproperty, as per the lenns oflhe conlracts €ntered into with buyers, v/hich generally coincides with lhe firming of
the sales contractvagreements. Revenue from sale ofland and development rights is only recognised when transfer oflegal title to
the buyer is not a condition precedent for ransfe. ofsignificant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer.
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C.sr Grrnde Zest Privrt€ Limited
Notes to financirl st.tements for the yerr endcd 3l Mrrch 2024
(All onounts ore in Millions, unl"ss othent'ite stoted)

Recoghltion ofrevenue from inlerlor rvorl(slnd srle ofconcrete producls and scrap:
Revenue is recognised whcn control of the goods are transfered to the customer at an amount that reflec6 the consideration lo
which the Company expec6 to be entitled in exchange for those goods. Revenue excludes indirect taxes and is aner deduction of
any tmde discounts.

Recognitlon ofravenue from malntetrancc and other sart'ices:

Revenue in respe€t ofmaintenance scn'ices and other sef! ic€s is recognised on an accrual basis, in accordancc with lhe terms ofthe
rcspcctive contract as and when the Company satisfics perfonnance obli8alions by delivcring the scrviccs as pcr contractual agreed

terns.

lncom. from Prcp€aty Development:
Thc Company has determined that thc existing terms of the conract with customers docs not meet the critcria to recognise revenuc

ovcr a period oftime. Rcvmu€ is rccognizcd at point in timc with respcct to conracts for salc ofrcsidential and corffnercial units

ss and whcn thc control is passed on to the custorncrs which is linked to the application and receipt ofoccupancy cdtificate.

S.l€ of Mrterlrls, Lrnd rrd Development Rights:
Revenue is rccognized at point in time llr'ith respect to contracts for sale of Materials, Land and Devclopmart RiBhts as and when

thc control is passed on to th€ custome$.

r. (ii) Contrrct b.lrtrce.
Contract asset is lhe right !o consideration in cxchangc for goods or services transfeflrd to the custom6. Ifthe Company performs

by 0ansf6ring goods or scrvices to a qrstomer beforc the customcr pays consideration or bcforc paymcnt is due, a conrad asset is

rccogoised for fic eamcd considcration $at is conditional.

Trade r€ceivable r.?r6ents the Company's rigfit to an arnoun! olconsideration that is unconditional (i.e., only thc passage of time

is required bcfore payment ofthe consideration is due).

Contsact liability is thc obligation to transfer goods or sdvicas to a customer for which lhc Conpany has reccivcd consideration (or

an arnount of considcotion is due) from thc customcr. lf a cuslomer pays consideration bcfore thc Company transfes goods or

scrvices to thc customer, a coDtract liability is rccognised whcn thc paymcnt is rnade or the paymcnt is due (wbichever is earlier).

Consact liabilides aft reogniscd as revmue when thc Contpany performs undcr the contracl.

B, Othcr Inaom.
!. Irtcrrta hcoma

Int rEst incornq including incorne aising from olhcr hnancial instruncnts mcasurcd at arnoniscd cost, is r€s.gniscd using thc

cffcctive intcf,.st ratc nrclhod.

b. Divld.trd lDcoD.
Rcvenue is rccogniscd whcn thc Company's right to rcceive divid.rd is established, which is geierally when sharcholdas approve

rhc dividcrd.

(rtr) Foralg! currcrcy tralslrtion
Functional and prEs€ntation currency :

I!c6s hcludcd in the finsncial slatcrncnts ofthe Company arc mcasured using the currcncy ofthe primary ecooomic environmcnt

in which thc Company opcratG ('the functional currcnry'). Thc financial staterncflts arE prcsented in Indian rupcc (INR / {), which

is thc Cornpany's functional and prescnlation currcncy.
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r. (iii) Cost to obt.ln . .otrtrrd
Thc Company recogniscs as all assel thc incrcmental cost! of obtaining a contract with a customer if the Company expccts to

rccovs thosc costs, Thc Conpany incurs ccts such as salas commission when it entels into a ncw contract which arc direcdy

related to winning thc conEac!. Thc asset recognisad is armrtised on a systematrc basis that is consistcnt with thc transfer to the

custoher ofthe goods or sciices (o whicb the asset relates.

b, Lcrra lncome
Th. company's policy for recognilion ofrEeenuc from opcrating leases is dcscriH in note 2.2(h).

c. Sh.r. ln profit/ loss of LlDited Lhbtllty Prrm.rshtp! ('LLP!") r P.fiershlp Iirm
The Conpany's sharr in profits,4osses from LLPS and parhdship finrl. whcre the Company i8 a partner, is recognised as

incomdloss iD lhe srakment ofprofit and loss as and when thc right to receive its profit/ lqss sharc is Gtablishcd by the Company

in accordancc wilh lhc tcrms ofcontract bet*'een lic Conpany snd thc parrncrship entity.
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C.sr Grande Zest Prlvate Limited
Notes to li nancisl slrt€ments for the yeer ended 3 I M, rch 2024

lA nounts urc in Mi ions, u,tl?ss othe^t'is. sttned)

Foreign currcncy trrnsections snd brhnces

A. tnitial rccognition - Foreign curr€ncy transacrions are recorded in ihc reportinS currency, by applying to the for€ign currcncy

amount the exchangc rate betwecn thc reportinS currency and the foreign cunency at the date ofthe transaction.

B. Conversloh - Forcign currmcy monctary ilcrns are rcranslatcd using lhc exchangc rate prcvailing al the rcponing datc. Non'
monetary items, which are measured in terns ofhistorical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the erchange

rate at the date ofthe trallsaction. Non-monetary items, which arc neasured at faiI value or olher similar valuation denominated in a

foreign cuncncy. arc translaled using the exchangc mte at the date whm such value was determioed.

C. Exchange diflerences - The Company accounts for exchangc diffcrences arising on translation/ setllement of foreiSn currency

mon€tary ilems ils incom€ or as expensc in the period in which thcy arise.

(n) Retircm.trt rDd other employcc b.n€fits

Rctircrnent bencfils in the forrn of statc govemcd Employec Providant Fund and Employer Statc Insumnce are dcfined contribution

schanes (collectivcly thc 'Schcmes'). The Company has no obligation, oth6 than thc contribution payable to thc Schcmcs- Thc

Cornpany rccognizcs contribution payable to lhc Schqncs as expmditurc, when an employcc rcndcrs the rclated servicc. Thc

conEibution peid in eac€ss of amount due is recognized as an as.set.nd the contribution due in cxccss of arrDunt paid is rccognizcd

as a liability.

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accnred based on an independcnt actuarial valuation, which is done bas€d on project

unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. The Company recogniz€s the net obligation of a defin.d benefit plan in ils balance

shect as an asset or liability. Cains and lo6ses through re-measuremmts ofthe net dcfned benelit liability/ (asset) are recognized in

other comprehe'sivc incomc. ln accorda.ce with Ind AS, re-mcasurement gains and loss€s on defincd bencfit plans recogtrized in

OCI are not to bc subsequcntly reclassified to statandt ofprofit and loss. As rcquired undcr Ind AS compliant Schcdulc III, the

Company recognizcs re-mcasurcment gins and losses on dcfincd benefit plans (nd of tax) to rclained camings.

Thc Company Eeals accumulated leavc cxpcctcd to bc carricd forward bcyond tpclvc rnonths. as lonS-tcrm mployee bcncfit for

mcasuernen! purposcs. Such long-term compensat€d absences are provided for bas€d on the actuarial valuatlon usinS the projected

unit credit method, oade at the e[ld of cach financial year. Actuarial gains4osses sre i&Eediately takcn to the stateEdt of profit

and loss. Thc ComFny prescnG the accurnulatcd lcavc liability as a currcflt liability in the balance shcet sincc it do€s not have an

unconditionrl right to defer its settlemcnt for twclve monlhs after the r€podng date.

(o) lncome trras
Income tax cxpensc compris.s currant tax expense and lhe nct changc in the dcfefed tax asset or liability during the ye,r.

Currdtt and deferred lsx arc rccogrizcd in thc statcrnent ofpmfit and lo6s, cxctpt whm they relate to iterns that are rccoSnized in

other comprdlensivc incomc or dire.tly in cquity, in which cssq the clrIrent aod defcrrcd lax arc also recognizcd in other

comprehcnsive incomc or directly in aquity, rcspcctively.

A. Curanl lrcorna arr
Current income tax asscts snd liabilitics Irc masurrd at thc amount cxpccled to bc recovcr€d from or paid to thc laxation

aulhoritics. The tax rates 6nd tax laws used to cornpute fie arnount are thos€ th.t are enactcd or substantively €oactcd, at lhc

raportin8 dal,e whcr. the Conpany opetttes and Scocr.tcs taxablc incomc.

Curreot iDcorn€ tax relatint to iterns recogDised oulside profit or loss is recognired outside profit or los6 (ciihcr in oth6T

cornprdlcosive incorne or in cquity). Cunent tax items arc recogniscd in corrclation to lhe und€rlying tiansaction either in OCI or

dirccdy in cquity. Man g.rnot periodically cvaluat€s pooitions taka in thc tar rctlrms with rEspcct to situetioos in which

ap,plicablc tax rcEul.tions aI! subjcct to intlrpntation and considcrs whethcr it is probable that s taxation sulhority will acce?t an

uncqtain tax Eratncnt. The coflpany shall reflcct the cffcct of unccrtainty for cach uncdtain tax traatm€nt by using eithcr most

likcly mcthod or expeclEd value mclhod, dep(,tding on which mcthod predicls better resolution ofthe trcaEnent.

B. Dcf€rrad ltrcoDc trt
Dcfdrcd incornc tax is rccognized usiDg lhc bala.c. shcct ap,proach, dcf(frcd tax is r€cognizcd oD tlnporaty difrercnc6 at thc

bslance sha€t datc bctwecn thc tax bascs ofasscts and lisbiliti€s and lheir carrying smouflts for finaDcial r@rting porposcs, except

whcn tha dcfcrrEd incomc tax arisas from lhc initial rccognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction thst is not a

busin€ss combination and alfacls ncilhcr acc.unting nor laxabl. Profi! or loss at thc timc olthc transaction.

Dcf€rrcd incorE tax assets arc recognized for all deductiblc trmporary diffcrences, carry forward of unuscd tax cr.dits and unused

tax loss€s, to the cxtcot that it is prcbable that taxable proft will bc availablc against which lhc deductiblc tempotrry diffcrcnc6,

aod lhe carry forward ofurtus€d tax crcdits alrd unused tax lossd cstr be utilizcd.

Thc carying arnount of dcfdrEd incomc tax assets is rcvicwcd at.ach bllanc€ shcct dale and reduccd to lhc cxtcnt that it is no

longcr prubablc that sufEcicnt taxablc p.ofit will bc available to allow all or pan ofthc dcfenEd inmrE tax assct to bc utilizcd-

Dcfarad incorE trx asscts and liabilitics arc maasurcd at the lax rates that are expccted to apply in lhc period wben lhc asset is

rcalizcd or thc liability is sdtl.d, bascd oo tax r.!es (aDd taa laws) that have b€eo cnacted or substanlively eaacted at thc balamc

sheet datc.
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('rsa Grarde Zest Prir'rt€ Limired
Notes to financiil strtements for the yesr ended 3l March 2024

ll anounts urc in Millions. unless oth"n*e st.tte.l)

Dcferred tax rclating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outsid€ pro6t or loss (cither in olher comprehensive
income or i. equity) in correlation to the underlying transacrion either in OCI or in equity.

Minimum Ahcmate Tax (MAT) crcdit is recognised as an asset ooly whcn and lo lhe extent there is convincing evidence lhat the
Company will pay nonnal tax duting thc spc_cificd pcriod. Such assct is revicwcd at €ach Balancc Shcct datc and thc carryinS
amount of lhe MAT credil assel is writtefi do\mr lo the extent $ere is no longer a convincing cvidence to the effect that thc
Corpany will pay Dormal lax duing lbe specified period- In the s3me way, Altemate Minimum Tax (AMT) is recognised for LLp.
(p) Provisions.nd contingenl lirbilities

A provision is recognized whcn $e Company has s present obligation (legal or constnrctive) as a result ofpast cvent, it is probable
thal an outrlow of rcsourccs embodying cconomic beflcfils will be rcquired to sc(llc lhe obligation and a rcliable estimatc can bc
rnade of thc amount of the obliSation. If thc cffect of the timc value of money is rnaterial, provisions ere discounted using a current
pre-lar( rate that reflccls, when appropriate, the risk sp€cilic lo lhe liability. Wlen discouDtiDg is used, the incrcasc in thc provisioD
due to the passagc of lime is recognized as a financc co6t.

A contfuSenl liabiliry is a possiblc obligation lhat aris€s fiom past evcnts aDd whose cxistcnce will be confinDed only by thc
occutrmce or non-occu[cnce of one or rDore unccrtain future evcnls not wholly within thc control of the Coanpany or a presalt
obligation that is not rccognized because it is not probable that sn outflow ofresources will be rcquired to s€ttle lhe obligetion. A
contingent liability also arises in extrerncly rarc cas6 wherc the'e is a liability that cannot be recognized bccausc it cannot bc
mcasur€d reliably. Thc Company does no( rccognizc a continScnr liabiliry but disalos€s it in the financial statements, unl6s thc
possibility ofan outflow ofresources ernbodying economic bcncfits is rcmote.

Ifthc Company bas a contrncl thal is oncrous, thc presen( obligation undar the contract is recogliscd and rn asurcd as a provision.
Howcver, bcforc a scparate provision for an oner_ous contnct is establishcd, lhe Compa'ly rccogniscs any impairment loss that has
occurrcd on ass€ls dcdicaled to ftat contract.
A conlingcnt asset is a po6sible assct that arises from past cvcnts and whosc existence will bc confirmcd only by the occurrmce or
non-ocqrrrance ofone or more unccrtain futurc cvcnls not wholly within lhe control ofthe aitity,
Contingeit assels arc ncithsr rccoSniscd nor disclos€d exccpt whcn rcalisation of incorne is virtually ccrtain, rclatcd assa is
disclos€d.

(q) Flmnchl lDrtrum.ntr
A financial instrument is any confact lhat givcs risc to a financial asset ofone citity and a financial liability or equity inslrumcot
of anotha cnlity.
Illltlal rccognltlon.nd meriuremcnt
Firancial assats ald liabilities arc idtially rD€asurad al fair valuc, fadc rcceivabldtradc payable that do trot mDtain a sigtrific..ot
financing component arc mcasurcd at Eansetion valuc rnd invcstmcnt in subsidiari6 alr mcasured at crsting accordancc wilh lnd
AS 27 - separate finsncid stateftent.

SubscqEctrt Eersurcment Non-derivativc financial iDsnurncflts

A. FlnrDchl rr3ets crrriad rt rmortised cort
A finaDcial ass.t is subs€quently mealurcd at amortiscd co6t if it is hald within a busincss model whose objectivc is to hold thc
assct io ordcr !o collcct contractual casb flows and lhc contEctual lcrrns ofthc financial assa givc risc on spccified dat6 to cash
flows tbat arc solcly psymcnts ofprincipal and interest on thc principal amount oubtarding.

B. F'in.Ilcirl r.set! rt frirv.lue through other comprahcrslvc income
Fitrancial assats are maasued at fai! valuc though other compr€hensive incosE if lhese financial asscts are held wilhin a business
whose objcctive is achicved by bolh collccting conu'actual cash flows and selling tinarcial ass€ts and the conEactual teflIs ofthc
financial assct give risc on specificd dates to cash flows that arr solely paynErts ofprincipal and intcrGt on thc principal amount
outitanding.

C. Fln.Bckl rss.ts .t fdr yrluc ttrough prolit or lo!.t

financial asscts are mcasu€d at fair valuc tbrough profit or loss uDlcss it is mcasurcd at amortized cost or at fair valuc through
othcr cornprehdNiv€ incorne on initial r€cognition.

D. D.bt lD,trum.nt! .t rmortlzrd cost

A 'debt instlunent' is mcasued at lfic amortized cost ifboti thc following conditions are mct:

i. The assct is held wi6in a business modcl whosc objestivc is to hold sssets for collccliD8 contmctual cash flows, and

ii. Contactual tcnns oflhe assct give rise orl sp€cificd dates to c6sh flows that arc solcly payncots ofprincipal ard interdt (SPPD

oD lhe priDcipal amount outstanding-
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Casr Grande Zest Privrte Limited
Noacs to ffnancirl strtements for th€ year endcd 3l Msrch 2024
(All momts ute in Mi ions, unless otherwis? st(te.l)

E.lnv€stment in rubsidi.ries, joint venturer rDd .ssoci.tes
Investment in subsidiaries. joint vmtures and associates are carried at cost- lmpairment rccognizcd, if any, is r€duced from the

clrrying value.

F. De.r€cognitior of lin.nci.l rss€t

Thc Company dcrccognizes a financial assq whcn the conEactual rights to $e cash flows from the financial asset cxpirc or it
transfers the financial assd and lhe transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS I 09.

G. Flnrncl.l lirblliti..
Inithl rccognition rnd mc.surcment

Financial liabilitic arc classificd, at initial recognition, as financial liabilitics at fair valuc through profit or loss. loans and

bonowings, or as payables, as appropriatc. The Company's financial liabililies include tradc and other payables, loans and

borrowings including bank ovc.drafu. The subsequeot rn€asuremeflt of financial liabilities dcpends on thcir classification, which is

described bclow.

Sub!€quent mer.uremcnl: Nonierivative financial instlummts

H. Fininci.l lirbilities at fiirvrlue through profit or loss

Financial liabilitias at farr valuc lhrougl prolit or loss ioclude financial liabililics held for tt-dding and financial liabilities
designated upon initial rccognition as at fair valuc through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for tradinS if
frey are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near ler:m.

l. Fin.nci.l li.bllltier rt rmortized coJt

Financi.l liabilitics rrc subs€qucndy measured at arnortized cost using the effcclive inkrEst ('EIR') rDethod- Gains and loss€s a.r€

recognizcd in profit or l6s ll,hm the iiabilities are derecognized as well as through lhe EIR arnortization proccss. Amonized cost is

calculat€d by taking into accoun( any discou[t or prcmium on acquisition and fces or costs that arc a. intcgral pan of thc EIR. Thc
EIR amortization is includedas finance cosls in the statement ofprofit and loss.

J- Dc-recognltion of 6n.nci!l lirbility

A financial lirbility is der@ognized whan the obliSalion undei thc liability is discharged or cancellcd or cxpir€s. When an existing
financial liability is nplaccd by anothcr from the sarne lcndd on substantially diflerent terrN, or rhc ierms of an existing liability
are subslantially modificd, such all cxchangc or modification is tcatcd as the derecognition of the original liability and the

rccognilion ofa new liability. The di{Icrence in the rcspective c{rrying amounts is r€cognizcd in th. statement of profit or loss.

K. F.lr vrlua hca,uremdrt
Fair value is tbc pricc that would be reccived to sell aD assa or paid to transfcr a liability in an ordcrly !'ansaction betwceD rhsrkct

participants at thc rnaasurqncnt dalc. Thc fair valuc mcasurcmqrt is bascd on the presurnptioi lhal thr tnDsaction to sell thc asset

or transfa the liability tak6 placc cilher:
>In the principal martd for thc asset or liability, or
)In the abscnce ofa principal markct, in lhc rnost advahtagcous mrr*d for tha assct or liability
The principal or thc most advantageous markct musl bc scac&sibla by lhc Company.

fic fair valuc of an assat or a liability is mcasurcd usinS thc assumptions that marka particip.nts would usc when pricinS lhc ass€t

or liability, assumiag that rnarkd participants act iD thcir cconomic b€st inlcrEst.

A fair value measurdncot of a non-financial asset takcs inlo account a rnar*ct panicipant's ability to gencrstc economic beoefils by
using thc assa in its high6t and b€st usc or by sclling it to aDothcr markct panicipant thal would usc thc asscr in its highcst and

best use.

The Company usas valuatioD t chniques tbat are apFopriatc in lhe circuistances and for which $ffici€rt dala are av.ilablc to
mcasurc fair valuq rnaximisitrg thc usc ofrelcva obscnabla inputs a.od minimising lhc use ofunobs.r'vable inputs.

In da.rmiring thc fair valuc of ils fituflcial ilstruncats, 6c CoDpany us6 followinS hierarchy aDd assutlptioos lhal alc bascd on

markct conditions and risk! existing al each rcporting dalc.

,;.
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After initial measuremenl. such financial asscts are subsequently measured al amortized cost usinS the effcctive interesl rate (EIR)
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discounl or prernium on acquisition and fees or coslr that are an

integral part of thc EIR. The EIR amodzrtion is included in financc income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairmmt arc rcrognizcd in thc profit or loss. This category genctally applies o radc and other rcccivablcs.
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Case Grand€ Zest Privat€ l,imited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended -jl Msrch 2024
(All unounts are il Millions. urless olhe ise skt<,.1)

L. F.ir vrluc hienrchy:
All assets and liabili(ies for which fair vahre is measured or disclosed in the financial statcmmts are categorized within rhe fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input lhat is significant to lhe fair vahr€ measuremenl as a wholcl

Lrvel I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in activc rnarkers for identical asscts or liabilities
Level 2 - valualion lcchniques for which the lowest lcvel input that is significant to the fair valuc measrcmenl is directly or
indir.ctly observable
Level 3 - Valuation tcchniques for which the lowesr lcvcl input that is significant lo the fair valuc measurement is unobservable

For asse{s and liabilities lhal are recognizcd in the finaocial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfcrs havc occuned bctwccr lcvels in lhc hicrarchy by re-assEssing catcSorization Oased on thc lowest lcvel input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at thc md of each r€porting period.
For thc purpose of fair valuc disclosur€s, the Company has dctermiDed classas of assets aDd liabilitics on the basis of the nanuc,
charactdistics and risk of lhe assct or liability and thc level ofthe fair valuc hicrarchy as o(plahcd abovc.

(r) Crsh dividend to equity holders ofthe Compsny
The Company r€cognizes a liability to male cash distributions 10 equity holders of fic Company when the distribution is

authorized and lhe distribution is no longer at the discretion ofthe Compafly. Final dividends on sharcs are recordcd as a liability
on thc date of approval by the shareholders and intcrim dividends are rcrordcd as a liability on thc date of dcclaration by th€
Company's Board of Directors.

(s) Errrlngs Per Shrrc
Basic carnings per sharc arc calculat€d by ditrding the nct profi! or loss for lhc pcriod attributable to €quity sharcholdcrs by thc
llcighted av6a8e DUDbcf, of cquity 6har€s oulslandint duriDS the pedod. Padly paid equity sharcs arc Eeated as a fiaction ofaD
cquity sharc to the extent that thcy are entitled to panicipate in dividends ielativc !o a fully paid cquity share during the reporting
pef,iod. Th. weighted avefage numbcr of equity sharcs outstanding during lhe p.riod is adjusted for evcnls such as bonus issuc that
havc chanScd the numbcr of cquity shares outstatdin& without a corresponding change in resourccs.

For thc purposc ofcalculsting dilut d carnings per share, thc net profit or loss fo.lhe p€riod attribuhblc l,o cquity shareholders and
the wciSblcd averagc Dumbcr of sharcs outstaDding during the period are adjust.d for the cffccts of all ditutive porcDdal cquity
sharcs,

(u) R.strt.ment
Thc Compa[y restate6 its financial slatements and prcscnts a opcning balancc shcct as et the beginning ofthc preceding pcriod if it
applics sn accounting policy r€trospectivcly, makcs a reEospective rcstatement of items in its financial statcments or roclassifics

itctrls in its finadcial stalcm66 that has a Enterial cffecl on the irformation i! lhe balarce shcct at tt. beginDing of the preccding

pcriod.
Thc Company corects matrial prior p6iod errors retrospcctivcly in lhe first sd of linancial sLtancnls apprcved for isgue afler
lhcir discov€ry by (a) raslating lhc compsradve amounts for thc prior tBiods prc*nted in which thc crror occured: or (b) if lhe
cItor occuEcd before thc carliest prior pcriod prescnted, r.stating thc opcning balanccs of asscts, liabilitics and cquity for thc
€arliGt prior period prcscfltcd.

(v) Sc8metrt reportinS
Ilr accordancc with Ind AS loE - Opartitrg Scgrnent, lhc opar'.ting segmcats ui.d to present scgturot iofoniation ar€ identificd on
dlc bssis of infomEtion rcvicwcd by the Company's managemqlt to allocatc rcsouc€s to the scgme s and asscss thcir
pcrfonnancc. An opcratinS scgmctlt is a componcnl of lhc Conpany that cn8agcs in busincss activitics from which it cams
rcvcnu6 snd iDcurs cxpcrrses, including rwcnucs and cxp€ni€s lhat rdal,c !o transactions wilh any of thc Conpany's other
c&poncnts. ResulE of thc operating segrnents arc rcvicwed rcgularly by thc Managing Dircctor who has been identificd as the
chicf operating decision riakcr (CODM), to lruke dacisions about r.sourccs to be allocatcd to lhe scgrnent and asscss its

ParfornDlce,
Pr6cndy, tbe Cornpany is cngagcd iD only one scgmant viz 'Real 6tatc arrd atlied adivitics' and as such there is no scpamte
rcportrblc scgmcnt as pcr Ind AS 108 'Of'crating Scgmcnts'. The Cornpany has op.rations only within India.

'|..
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(t) Cash a,ld crsh €quiYrlenls
Thc Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which arc rcadily canvertible into known amounts ofcash that arE

subjcct io an insignificalt risk ofchaDgc in value and having original rraturilics ofthree rnonths or lcss from $e date ofpurchasc,
to bc cash cqtrivalents. Cash and cash equivalcnts consist ofbalanc€s with bank which are unrcstrictad for withdiawal and usagc-
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Casr Crande Zesl Privrte Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3t March 2024
(All.Dnounts orc u Millioni. unlel's othll^rire rtutcd)

Accordingly, the segmml revenue, segmenl results. lotal carrying amount of segm€nt assets and seSmenl liabiliry, total cosr
incurred lo acquire s€gmenl asscls and total amount of charge for depreciation during lhe period, is a.r reflected in rhe finaDcial
statements as ofand for thc year ended 3l March 202.1.

2J Slgni{icrnl accounting judgm€nts! estim.tes rrd lssumptions
The pteparation of financial stalements requires nunagement ro makejudgments, estirnares and assumptions that affect the r€poned
balances ofrevenues, expenses, asse6 and liabilities and the acconpa[ying disclosures, ard the disclosure ofcontingent liabililies.
Uncerlainty about these judgrD€nts, assumptions and estifiEles could resull in outcories that require a hatcrial adjustmenr to the
carrying arnount ofsssets or liabilities affected in future periods.

ln lhc process of applying the Company's accounting policies, rnanagement makcs judgcrn€nl estimat€s aDd assumptions which
have themos( significant cff€ct on the afiounls recognized in the linancial staternorts.

The kcy judgcrnenls, estirDatcs and a6sumptions concerning thc fufiIrc and othc, key sources of estimation unccrtsinty al the
reporting date, that have a significant risk ofcausing a material adjustment to thc carrying arnounts ofasscts and liabili(ies within
the next financial year, are described bclow The Cohpany bascd its judgcrnents, assumptions and estimates on paramcters
available wh.n the financial statemenb werc prearcd. Existing circumstances and assunptions aboul futur€ developments,
howcvcr, may changc duc to matket changG or circurnstanc€s arising tha( are b€yond the contol ofthc Company. Such changes
are rcflected in the assumptions when (hcy occur.

A) Revenuc fiolll contr.ctswilh customers

The Company spplicd thc following judScments that significan y affect the delcrmination of thc amount and timing of rcvenu.
from contaacts with cuslomcrs:

r. (i) ldeDtlflcrdoit of pcrforD.Dce obligrtiod

Rcvenue consists of sale of undivided sharc of land and constructcd arca to the customer, which have bcen idcntified by the
Cornpa[y as a singlc perfontuncc obliSation, as lhey are highly int€rrclatad/ interdepcndedt. lD asscssitrg whethq pcrfonnaDcc
obliBations relating !o s.sle of undivided share of lard and constuctcd arca are highly intenelated/ inlcrdepcodent, the CompaDy
considers factoE such as:

- whcthcr the ctstomer could benefrt ftom thc undividcd sharc of land or the constlucted arca oD its own or iogcthcr with other
resourca readily availablc to the customer.

- whclher thc entity will bc ablc to fulfil its promisc under thc conlrac! to transfd lbe undividcd shaE of land wilfiout transfcr of
coDstsuct€d arEa m triursf.r fie constructcd area without Eansfcr of undividcd sharc of land.

1 (ll) Tlmht of 3.tl.f.ctlon of p.fomrnce oblt.tiob

Rcvcnue ftom salc of real cstate unils is recognised when (or as) control of such units is tra$frf,r€d to thc custom€r. Thc cntity
assesses timiog oftransfer ofcontrol of such unils to thc cusiomers as transfmcd ovcr timc if onc ofthe following critcria arr met:

- The cusiomcr simultaneously reccives and consumes the brncfils providcd by the artity's pcrformance as the cntity pcrforms.
- Thc atltity's pcrfonnancc crcatcs or mhanc€s an ,6sct that thc customer controls 8s thc asscl is cEated or 6hanced.
- Thc ctttity's pcrfonnancc docs not c'rcatc an assct $r'ith an altornative usc to the cntity and thc cntity has an cnforceable right to

paymcot for pqfoiruncc cornplctld !o datc.

Ifconlrol is not trarsf€nrd over time as above, the entity considen the same as transf€.red at a point in time.

For contacts wh€tc contol is tssrtsferred at a point in tianc the Conpany considcrs thc following indicators of thc Fansfcr of
contol oflhe rssc, to thc qrstom6:

- Whcn thc qrtity obtains a prescnt right to paymcnt for the ass€t.

- Whair the cntity tra$fcrs lcgal ti c oflhe ass.t to the custorEr.
- Whair lhc cotity Eansfcts physical posscssion ofthc a6set !o thc custom6.
- WhGn lhc cotity fansfcrs significant ris*s aud rcwards ofowoership ofttc asset to thc custorDer.
- Whcll thc custorn i has acc<ptcd the assct.

The afor6aid indicators of transfd of control are also considcrcd for detcmination of lhc timing of daecognitiofl of invcstmant
prop€rty.
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Cssa Grande Zest Privste Limited
Notes to financial strtements for the year ended Jl Msrch 2024
(A u,noun|\ a,'e in Millt'ns. unl"ss othalrLte stated)

b) Accounllng for revenue lnd land cost for projects erccuted throughjoint development rrrsngemelts (.JDA')
For Projecls executed throughjoinl development anarlgemmts, the Company has evaluared that land owners are not engaged in rhe
sarn€ line ofbusiness as the Company and bence has concludcd that such arrangernents arc contracrs wirh customers. The revenue
from the devclopment and transfer of construclcd arerrevenue sharing armngement and fie corresponding land/ development
rights rcccivcd under JDA is measurcd at the fair value of $c estimated construction scrvicc rendcrcd to the land o\f,ner and the
same is accounied on launch of the projecr The fair }?lue is cstimated with referencc to the terms of the JDA (whether revenue
share or area share) and the telaled cost that is allocated !o discharge the obligation of the Compa.y under the JDA. Fair value of
lhe construction is considffed to be the repres€ntalive fair valuc ofthe revenue tnnsaclion and land so obtained. Such assessmmt is
cafiicd out at the launch ofthe real cstrte project and is not reassessed at each reporting period. The management is ofthe view rhat
the fair valuc method and estinrates are reflectivc ofthe cunent rrark€t condition.

c) Signilicrnt finoncillg.omponenl
For coDtracts involving sale of real cslate uDit, thc CoEpany receives the consideration in accordance with tbe terrns of the contract
in Proponion of the pcrccnlage of completion of such real .stat€ project and rqrescnts paymenb made by custofters to secure
perfornunce obligation ofthe Company under thc contract mforceable by customers. Such considef,alion is reccivcd and utilised
for specific real cstate projects in accordance with the requironents ofthe Real Estatc (Regutation and Development) Act" 2016.
Consequcndy, the Company has concluded that such contracls with customcrs do nol involvc any finarcing elern€n( sincc thc samc
aris€s for reasons explaincd abovc, which is olh6 than for provision of financc lo/from thc customcr.

B. Chssific.tion of propcrfy
Thc Company determincs whether a pro[,6ty is classified as invcsthent property or invcntory as below.
Investnent prop€f,ty compriscs land and buildinSs (principally office and rdidenrial propcrties) that are not occupicd substantially
for use by, or in the opcrations 04 the Conpany, nor for salc iD the ordinary coulse of business, buI are held prinurily to eam rantal
incorde and capital appreciatioD. Thcse building/gs arc substa[tially rentad to tena[ts and not intarded to be sold in lhe ordinary
cours€ of business.

Invcntory compris€s propcrty thal is hcld for sale in thc ordinary cours€ ofbusin€ss. Principally, this is rGidential and comrncEial
propcrty lha( the Conprny devclops and intcnds to sell b.forc or du;ng lhc coursc of constnrction or upon complction of
consEuction.

Estimation of nct realizablc valuc for invcnlory 6nd land advancc :

Inventory is s6ted at the lower ofcost and net rcalizablc value (NRV).

NRV for conplacd hvcntory propcrty is assesscd by rafcrcnca to rbarket conditioDs and pric6 cxisting at thc rcporting data aDd is
dct€mincd by lhe Compary, based on conparablc lriDJactions id.otificd by (hc Conpany for prcpcrrics in the same geographical
market scrving ltc saIIrc rEal cstate sagmert.

NRV in respcct ofinvantory property undcr construclion is asscssed with refcrcncc to rna*ct pric6 at thc reporting date for simita,
complelad prcpctty, l6s Gtirnat€d costs to corplctc coDstruction and cstiEBtc of lhe dmc valuc of honcy to &e datc of
conplction.

With respect io land inventory and land adwncc givcn, the nd rccovoable value is bas€d on the pr€scnt valuc of futurc cash flows,
which dcpcnds on thc c'timate of, among oth6 lhings, thc likclihood tha! a projcct will be complcra4 tbc expcctcd datc of
coqletioD,lhc discouDt lata us€d atrd thc estimation of salc pric6 aDd catrsfilctiob costs.

C. Imprirmenl of ron-llnllrcirl rsiats
Impairnreill exists vhm thc carrying value of an ass.t or cash gderating unit cxceEds its recovdsblc amount, which is the highcr
of ils fair valuc lcss co6tJ ofdispossl and its valuc in usc. Th. fair value less costs ofdisposal ca.lculation is bascd on availablc dao
from binding salcs t'ansactions, conduclcd at arm's lcngth, fot similar assets or obscrvablc market priccs lcss incrcmcntal costs for
disposing ofthc asset. Thc value in usc calculation is based on r DCF rnodel. The cash flows arc derivcd fiom thc budget for the
n€xt five ycars aDd do nol includc r6tructuring activitiG tha! the Company is not yet committed to or significa.t fuhlre
ilrvcstmclB tbat will ohancc th€ assct's perforEaocc oflh. CCU bciog testcd. Thc rccovCablc amount iJ seDsitivc to the discount
ratc used for thc DCF t todcl as well .s thc sxpcctcd futurc crsh-inflows and thc gD*1h rate uscd for cxi_apolation purposes. Thcse
cstimates &re most rclcvant !o disclosurc offair value ofinvestment propsty rc.orded by the Conpany.
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C.s. Grande Zest Privrte Limited
Notes to linrncirl slatements for the year ended 3l M.rch 2024
(All unounrs ure in Millions, unless othenlise sk ed)

D. Defined ben€fft plrns - Grrtuity
The cost of the defined benefil gratuity plan and other post-ernployment m€dical benefits and the present value of the Sratuity
obligation are delermined using actuarial valualions. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from aclual developments in the future. These includc thc delermination ofthe discount rate. futur€ salary incrcascs and rnonality
rates. Due (o the complexities involved in the valuation and its long{erm nature, a defined bencfit obligation is highly sensitive to
changcs in these assumptions- All assumptions are rcviewed at each reponing date.

The param€ter rnost subject to chanSe is the discount rate. In delermininS the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in lndia,
the rnanageficit consid€rs the inlerGl rates ofgovcmnEnt bonds. Thc mortality rate is bas.d ob publicly avail.ble rno(ality tabl6.
Those monality tables tard to change only at intcrval in r6ponse to dcnDgraphic changes. Futur€ salary incrcas€s are bescd on
expected future inflation rates and expected salary incrtasc lhoeon.

E, Me.surement offinrnclsl lnslrumchts rt rmortlzed cost
Financial instrument are subscqlmlly measur€d at emortized cost using the effective intercst ('EIR') method- Thc computation of
amonized cos( is smsi(ive to lhc inpuls lo EIR including cfrc.tivc ralc of inlcr6t, contractual cash flows and the expecled lifc of
the financial instrurnenl. Chang6 in assumptions abolt th6e inputs could affcct fie reponci valuc offinahcial ins(rumenls.

F. Ureful life rnd residurl vrlue ofprop€rty, pl.nt.nd cquipment
Thc useful life and residual valuc of property, plant and cquiprnent is dctermined based on cvaluation rBde by the rnanagernent of
the expected usage of thc asset, lhe physical wcar and tcar and t€cbnical or commercial obsolescmce of lhe assel. Due to the
judgernens involved in such estirnates the useful lifc and rGidual value are scnsitive to lhe actual usage in future pcriod.

G. Provision for lidg.tiors .nd contirgencies
Provision for litigations and continSencies ir detemincd b.sed on cvalualion made by thc rnanagcmcnt ofthc prcscnt obligstion
arising from past cvails the scttlemmt ofwhich is cxpc.tcd to r6ult in outllow ofr6ourc6 crnbodying cconomic benefits, which
involves judgcmcnts arourd cstimatd $c lltimat! ourcorrc of such pasi cvcnls aJrd measurcmcnl of (he obliSation arnount. Duc to
judgements involved in such estinution the provision is s€ositive to the actual outcome in futura p6iods.

Vikai Manlra
Towsrr /249
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Casa Grande Zcst Pri\a(e Limitcd
Notes to Financial Strtcmcnts for thcyear endcd March 31,2024
(All amounts are in Milhons , unless olheru'ise stated)

3. Propcrty, plsnt rnd equipment

Computers
Furniture

and Fix(ur€s
Omce

Equipment
Phnt.rld
Mrchinery Totel

Cost

As .t April0l,2022
Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As .t Mrrch 31,2023
Additions during tbe year

Disposals during the year

As rt Mrrch 31,2024

Deprecirtion

As rt April 01, 2022

Depreciation charge for lhe year

Disposals during the year

As rt Mrrch 31,2023
Depreciation charge for the year

Disposals during lhe year

A! rt M.rch 31,2024

Net block

As et March 31,2023
As at Mrrch 31,2024

1.50

3.19

0.18
0.50

1.68

4.640.53 0.42

0.53 1.69

0.13

0.68 0.42 6.32

-

0.66 4.69 0.6t 0.42 6.45

0.08

1.03

0.01

0.29 0.01

0.09

1.460.13

0.r3
0.28

t.ll 0.10 0.01 r.55
o.92 0.17 0.07 L45

0.41 2.03 0,47 0.08 3.00

0.40

0.25

3.58

2.66
0.4r
0.34

4.17

3.46

0.18

0.21

R l( Mult poad
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Crs, Grande Zest Privatc l,imited
Notcs to Financirl Stetemcnts lbr the year endcd March 31. 2024
(Alt anounts a,e in Millions. unless othollise skte.l)

4. Lorns
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated. measured al amortised cost)

Nlrrch 3l 2024 )lerch 3l 2023

Loans to relrted party
Loan to related parlies

Totsl loans cerri€d rt amortised cost

Current
Non-nrrrent

5. Other finrncial rsrels
(Measured at amortised co6t)

159.42 1,223.91

359.42 1.227.94

As et

359.42 1,223.94

As s(

Nlerch 31 2024 Mrrch 3l 2023

Seculity deposit
Bank deposits with more than 12 months

Interest accrued but not due

Unbilled Revenue

Interest accrued and due

Rental advance

Tohl finaucirl in5(ruments rt .mortised cost

Current
Non-Current

6. Othcr assets

0.23

15.61

5 r 6.16
155.04

0.05

0.52

o.23

E.E4

296.46

0.48

0.54

687.61 106.95

67 t .7'l

15.84

291.88

9.07

As rt
March 3l 2024 Mrrch 3l 2023

Advance to suppliers

Advances for land contracb

Tax paid under protest

Adr6.ce to employees

Prepaid expenscs

Total other assets

Currcllt
Non Crurent

?. Deferred lex assets (n€ty Deferred tax li.bilities (ret)

13.23

0.02

0.03

6.8 t

0.02

0.01

0.34Ll4
14.42 1.18

14.39

0.03

7.18

As at

2024 Mrrch 3l 2023

As et

Mrrch 3l
Deferred t.r lirbilitics
Inventory

Uneamed revenue

Bolrowings
Gross d.ferred trr ll.bllltl..

Deferred trx assets

Property, plant and equipment

Non deductible expenses for tax purposes

Gross deferred tsx rsscts

9.91

148.23

0.02

t5t.l6

0.36

I10.27

0.19

I10.6-l 0.19

R J( l,'ui I Foad

Vika

Tov,
i Manlra
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Casa Grande 7-esl Prilate I-imitcd
\otes lo liinancial Slxtcmcnls for the t'ear cnded l\larch.3l. 202{
(A ll anu ts are ot Millions. unless otherwise slaled)

E.Inrentories As at
March 31, 2024 uarch f I 2023

work-in-progress
Raw malerials, components and stores

Land stock

Totrt inventories rt the lorder of cost snd net r€alisrble value

9. Tradc receivrbles
(Unsecured, considered good)

I,217.1O

3.23

74-3.90

As st
Merch 31,2023

60.,14

1,280.33

lVrrch -11 2024

Trade rcccivables

Trade reccivables ageing schedule

25.23

25.23 60.4{

As at As at
March 3l 2024 March 3l 2023

Undisputcd Trrde R.ceiveblcs - considcrcd good

OutstaDding for following periods from due date of payment

Current but not due

Less than 6 months

6 months - l year

I -2 ycars

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Tot.l

10. Cash rnd crsh equiYaletrts

17.t1
8.05

60.44

25.23 60.44

As at As at

NIarch -ll 2024 Merch 3l 2023

Bolances wirt banks:

- On current accounb

- Deposits rrith original maturity of lcss than threc months

Cash on hand

Totd crsh rnd cr.h .quivtlcnt

2.21

0.73

0.28

131.91

0.M

3.22 t32.01

Cash at barks eams in(eresr at floating rates based on daily bank dcposit rares. Shott-tarm deposib arc nade for varying pcriods of between

one day and three months, dependitrg on the immediatc cash requiremcns of the Compaoy, and cam interest at the respecive shon_term

deposit rates.

11. Brnk brl.rces other th.n crsh and cssh equivalents

As .t As et

Mrrch 3l 2024 Mrrch 3l 2023

In deposits accornts:
- Original maturities morc than three months and less than 12 months

In eat marked occotnts:
- Balancc held as margin moncy against guaraotees givcD

Totrl oth.r brrk bthDce

45.00

0.01

0.01 45.00

llandavelF2ga

o

| Ar'.,.

ld,rtra

204.56

52.59

486.75
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(Allanounts ure in Millions, unless olheN)ise stated)

12. Currenl trI assel (net)

As at
IVarch -11 2021

Provision for tax

Tot.l current tax (net)

13. Equity sharc capital

4t.55
(96. | 5)

As rt
Mrrch 31,2023

26.69
(28. )

(5{.60) (1.12)

Equity sharcs of { I0 each
mber Amoun(

t0,000 0.r0

_ _!!Jqo 0.10

0.10

0.r0

0.r 0

I0,000 0.r0

t0,000 0.10

__________-t-9J90 ____________qJ-0

t0.000

Rcgular Equity sharcs : Thctc equity sharcs are having a par valuc of { l0 pcr share. Each sharcholder is cligible for One vote per share held.
Thc dividsnd proposed by drc board is subject to fte approval of thc shareholdcrs in lhe ensuing Annual Cencral Mceting, cxcept in casc of
intcrim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible to reccivc thc rerluinihg assets of thc Company after
distribution of all preferential amount, in proportion ro thcir sharcholding.

Equlty shrres of I l0 e.ch
Number AmouDt

b) Is.ued share c.pltrl
At April0l, 2022

Incrcasc(decrease) during thc year

At Mrrch 31.2023
Incrcase/(decrease) durioS the year

At M.rch 31,2024

10,000 0.10

10,000

r0,000

c) Prid-up sh.re crpitd
At April01, 2022

lncrease(decrease) during the year

At Mrrch 31,2023
lncrcasc(decrease) during tbc year

At Mrrch 31,2024

Detrils ofshareholders holding more than 57o shares and sheres hrld by promotcrs in the Comprny
As .t

Mrrch 31,2024
No. of Shrres 7. of Holding

Equlty sh.res
Calagrand Premier Builder Limitcd (Formerly known as Casagr.nd Prcmier Build.r
Prilzre Limitcd)

10,000 too%

/-

Casa Grande Z-cst Private I-imitcd
Nolcs to [_inancial Statements for the year ended March 31. 2014

r) Authorised shrre crpitsl
As.t April01, 2022

Increase(decrease) during the year

As rt March3l,2023
Increase/(decrease) during the year

As rt M.rch 31,202,1

Rights, preferences end r€strictlols rttached to the equity shrrei
Thc Company has one class ofequily shares viz., regular equity shares.

ACCo



Casa Grande 7,est Privrte 1-imited
Notes to Finrncial Stalements for lhe year endcd Mrrch 31,2024
(Allanbufils urc i Millions, unless othetyise stale.l)

As at
March 31.2023

No. ofShares 7. of Holding
Equity shares

Casagmnd Premier Builder Limited (Formerly knollTl as Casagrand Premier Builder
Private Limited)
Det.ils ofch.nges in the promot€rs holdings

10.000 100%

As sl As al
lUarch 3l 2024 March 3l 2023

Equiq/ shrres
Casagrand Premier Builder Limited (Formerly known as Casagrand Premicr Builder
Private Limiled)

14. Other equlty

0.00% o 000/.

As a(

llsrch 3l 2021 llarch 3l 2023
r) D€b.nturc redemptiol reserye

Opening
Add: Additions
Less: Utilised,/ Transferred

Closing

!) Ret lDrd crrtritrgs
OpenirS
Add: Additioos
Less: Utilised/ Transfcrcd
Closirg

10.89

10.89

39.94

352.58

(10.89)

32.61

7.33

39.94

a) Debcrture redemption resarve

Thc gllrp is rcquired lo crcatc a deb€nturc r.demption rescrve out of profits *'hich is available for payment ofdivid€nd for thc purpose of
redcemeble non convcrtible and optionally convertible debenntes.

b) R.tthed crmlngs

Thc curnrlativc gair or loss arising from thc opcrations *hich is rctaiDed by thc Cofipany is recognised and accumulatc-d ulder suplus in thc
statemcnt of profit and loss.

As ,t As 8t
Merch 3l 2024 ltarch 3l 2023

A) Nor!{urrelt borrowlngs

Sccurad

l) Dcbcntures

l5% Unlisted, rcdeemable, cumulative, non-conveniblc Series A
debcntucs ('Series A NCDS") at par value of l. I Million each

(31 March 2024 - 430, 3l March 2023 - 480)

Unsecurcd
Olhcrs

Total non current borrowings

108.88

6.50

170.40

6.50

376.90

s rlanha
ers r249
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15. Borrowings

115.38

Lhyeli-2
!ltBdad

A

e



Casa Grande Z-€st PriYate Limitcd
Notes to Financial Stalements for thc ycar endcd Mrrch 31, 202{

llanou ts dre in Millions. unless othen,ise slated)

B) Current borrowings
Secured
i) Brnk overdr.fts / Crsh Credit

ii) Curr€nt maturity oflong-t€rm lorns
From fi nancial institutions 84.00 60.00

Securcd

Othcrs

Unsecured
i) Losn repeyrble on demand
From banks

From related pa(ies
ii) Others
Totrl curr€ht Borrordlngs

3.34

lll.14
67.50

I,252.M
57.00

267.911 r,369.04

l6- Other firrtrchl li.bllities
(Carried at amo(ised cost)

As .t
Mrrch 31,2024

As ri
Msrch 31,2023

Interest accrued but not due

Accrued expenses

Redemplion PrEmium on Debenture

332.64

453.8t
l.5E

204.51

16.40

0.37

Tol.l oaher fin.ncirl liabilities
Currcnt

Non current

220.9t

0.37

As.t
Mrrch 31,2024

As 3t
Mrrch 31,2023

788 03

17. Other lirbilities

Adv6ncc fiom customcrs (including cancelled customer)

Shtutory dues and rclated liabilities
Uneamed Revenue

Others

?0.30

2.63

0.02

Tot.l other lirbllltles
Current

Non currenl

72.95 956.38

72.95 956.38

18. Tr.de prylbles As .t
Mrrch 31. 2024

As rt
Mrrch 3l- 2023

Trade pal,ables

- tolal outstanding dues ofmicro small and medium enterprises

- total outstandirg dues to othcrs

Tot l trrde pryrblc6

Trade palables

Trade pa),ables to related parties

Totd trrde p.y.ble6

50.04

48.14

45.3r

50.44

98.18 95.75

80.84

11.34

82.51

13.24

?

7tt.03 221.2E

35.54

6.64

914. r 5

0.05

9t.lr 95.75
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Cssr Grande Zest Priwtc Limiled
Not$ (o Finrnci.l S(.(cm€n(s for th€ yerr end€d Mrrch 31, 2024
(All.mounts rrc in Millions. unless othcrwisc srir.d)

S.no 20:{ 2023

Mn
Amt io

Mn

I

India Realty

Excellence

Fund V

Borrowins Enrity: Casa Grande Zest Privare Limitcd
Naore ofsecurity:
l. Propcrty: First ranking pari passu charge by way of memorandum of dcposit of thlc dceds (and
regisraton lhereoo in respect of the Mongagcd prop€rty - Proj$t Land Acrcs 9 and 5 I cents
situatcd in Vcngmbakkam(Mab€lle) r'illagc, Tambaram Taluk Chcngalpct Disrict and antire
salcabl€ area of3,54,224 squar€ f€el.(shared with lhe Hyderwise Debmturc Truste€ with r€sp€ct to

lhe Hydcrwise NCDS (as sccurity for ahe duc repaFent of: (i) Oulsranding Amounrs in r€specr of
the S6ics A NCDS; and (ii) outstanding amounls in rcsp€it of Hyderwisc NCDS)
2. Stock and rccci\Ebles & Mo',,able Pmpcrtica: First rankirg pari passu chargc by way of
hypo(hccation ovcr thc Hypothecatcd Propcrty - all pr.sent and tuore movable propcrtics of the

Company in relation to the Project (Mabellc) including wilhout limitation: (a) all entitlcment and

righls of lhc Company on the Rcccivablcs, movcablc essds and firturc cash flows in respcct ofth€
Project; and (b) the Escrow Accounls, CoosEuction Account, all olher bank accounts of the

Company and all monics and invcstrncnts lying lo th. cndit ofthc Escrow Accoun6. Conslr.lction

3. Corpomle gu.rantce: Casagrand Premier Buildcr Limited

t08.88 370.40

R.paymsrt T.ms & Rale of Interest :

l. Facility Typc: Unlisteq rcdeerDable, cumulativq Eonronvcrtiblc Scries A d.banturd ('Serics A
NCDS") at par vrluc of{ I Million .ach. Fscility Amouot { 430.00 Million
2. Final Maturity: On or prior to October 3 | , 2025

3. R.paymcllr: NCDS are rcdeanable in 3 instalmcnts as follows:
(i) 33% oflhc Principalon April30,2025;
(ii) 33% of th. Principal July 31, 2025:
(iii) 3470 of lhc Principal on October 31,2025i
4. Principal Moralorium: 36 months &om the dat. of subscription of firsl tranchc (Scp 2022)

5. Intcrim inlcrcst coupon: quartcrly at lhc rala of l5% p.a (fixed). First coupon cornpotrndcd on

Novehb€r 30,2022. Firsl coupod due on Dccdrber I I , 2022.

6. IDtercst Moratorium: Ni,
7. Additiooal Inicrest: rhe .dditional intcrEt paFblc !t rn amorrnt that providG ro IRR of 16.5%

p.a. simullancouily wilh any !,ayneot ofprincipal or as pcr the s.hcdulc bclow whicher€t is eatlict:
(i) 33% (Itfty Thr.c Pcrc.no ofthc Additional Int.r6t on April 10, 2025;

(ii) 33% (Thirty Thr.. Pcrcerq of lhe Additional lntcr€st on July 31, 2025;
(iii) 34% Cfhirty Four Pcrccnt) of thc Additiooal Intc'6t on Octobd 3 I , 2025.

1itsP.AN
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Crs, Grsnde 7,est Privrt€ Limitcd
Nolcs to Finrnci.l Strlemcnls for the year ehdcd Msrch 3t,2024
(Alt anrounrs are in ltillions, unless otheryise stutcd)

Trsde pryables ageing schedule

Totrl outstsnding dues of micro! smrll and medium enterprises
Less than I year

I -2 years

2-3 yea'rs

More than 3 years

Totrl

Totrl outstrndlDg dues to oihels
Less than I year

I -2 years

2-3 years

More than J years

Totrl

l\larch 3l 2024 l\l arch 3l 2023
48.62

t.22
0.20

45.26

0.05

35.63

t2.05
0.47

0.00

49.51

0.93

48.14 50.44

The identillcation of Micro, Small and Mediun Enterprises Suppliers as defined undcr "The Micro Small and Medium Enrerprises
Development Act 2006" is bascd on information alEilable with thc rnanagement As ccnified by thc management, on the amounts over due (if
any) to Micro, Small and MHium Enterprises on account of principal amount, intcrest has been accrued and will be paid to suppliers on
demand ofclaim. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.

19. Revenue from contrrcts wilh custom€rs

Mrrch 1l 2021 Mrrch 3I 2023

Revenue from .eal estate development
Rcvcnue from joint developmenl agreemert (JDA)
Rcvenue from construction services

Sale ofservices
Totrl rcvcnue from corlrrcts wlth customers
India
Oulsidc India

Tohl rcvcnuc from cotrtrrcts with customers

Timing of revenue recognlalon
Revenue Recognition at a point in timc
Rcvenue Rccog[ition ovcr pcriod of time

Totrl rcvenuc from contncts slth customeB

Olher operatlng revcnuci
Modificalion iocome

Cancelled customer income

Sale of l^and

Tohl other operrtfug rcverues

Toarl ravcttue from oparrtlob!

6.68

0.30

25.64

10.40

0.49

2,020.58

2.020.5t
2,020.58

020.58

2,020.5E

2,020.5t

32.62 r0.E9

2.051.20 t0.E9

As at As st
Msrch 3l 2024 M.rch 3l 2023

Cortnct assets

Trade receivablcs

Unbilled revenue

Contrict lhbllities
UnBmed Revenue

Customer advances

25.23

155.04

914. t 5

35.54

60.44

70.30

5s

I

$a

50.04 45.31

Contract b!lances
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Case Grende Zcst Private Limited
Notes to t'inancial Strtemcn(s lbr the year ended March 31, 2024

(.1 ll a ounts are in Millio s, unless othe,'$'ise slaled)

20. Othcr incontc
Itarch 3l 2024 Mrrch 31, 2023

Gain on sale ofmutual funds

lnterest income

Misccllancous income

0.07

226.71
0.75

0.03

2.t4

2.r1

21. Cost of raw materirls, components alld Stores consumed
Ntrrch 3l 2024 Mrrch 3l 2023

a. Rrw mrtcriol and components consumed

Inventory at the beginning ofthe year

Add: Purchases

Less: inventory at (he cnd oflhe year

22. Construction actiritl_ expen scs

3.23

22r.80
(s2.59)

I19.84
(3.23)

172.44 lt6.6l

Mrrch 3l 2024 Mirch 3l 2023

Land cost

Approval, Iegal and liaison

Construction cosl

lnterest and financial charges

23. (Increasey decr€rse in stock of llats, land stock and rpork-in_progress snd trrded goods

0.50

38.45

805.72

206.83

Msrch 3l 2024 Mrrch 3l 2023

a) Opcning balance

worlc-in-progress

Tot l opcning bshnce

b) Closing balance

Work-in-progrcss
Land stock

Tot l closlng brl.nce

c) Tot.l dilTerence ln invertory (r) - (b)

24. Finrnce costs

2M.56
4E6.15

691.31

I,277.t0

1,277.10

1,277.10

1,277.t0

362.29

362.29

s85.79 (9 r 4.81

M.rch 31.2024 Merch 31,2023

Interest Expense

- Intercst on borrowings
- lnterest on laxes

Other borrowings costs

Lcss: Borrowing Cost transferred to Construction activity cxpcnses

206.81
4.54
0.15

51.59

0.52
0.20

2t L52 58.31

(206.83) (57.59)

4.69 0.12

s
tsl>J N4/r

,'oVilai Mait,. (-
Tower! r2,:9
I X Mult noed
Mandavati-28I

ACC

221.59

520.E3

32.43

187.35

51.59

1.05t.50 ?9t.20



Casr Grsndc Zcst Privrtc Limited
Notes to Finrncirl Stetemcnts for thc yesr ended March 31. 2024
() ll unounrs ate in Millions, unless othenise stated)

2S. Dcprcciation and ,rnrortization expensc
luarch -11 21124 March 3l 2[23

1.15 1.46

Msrch 31, 2024 March 3l 2023

Rates and tsxes

CSR er(penditure

Legal and professional fees

Payment to auditor (Refcr dctails below)

Rent

Bank chargcs

Peyment to Auditors

0.09 0.t4
0.39
o.o2
0.t9

0.23

0.30

0.21

0.r2 0.17

0.95 0.91

lUirch 3l 2024 M.rch 3l 2023

As rudltor:
Audit fec

Ir other c.prciq/:
Other services (certifi cation fees)

0.-10 0.19

As per Sc.tion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, mecting the applicability threshold, nceds to sp€nd al least 2yo of its average net

profit for the irnmediarely prcccding rhree financial years on corpor-ate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are

eradication of hunger and nulnutrition, promoting education, art and culntte, healthcare, dcstitute care and rehabilitation, environmen!

sustainability, disaster rclicf and rural devclopment project.

Mrrch 3l 2024 March 3l 2023

(i) Amourlt required to bc spent by the company during the year

(ii) Amount of expenditure incured / ['ansfered to unspent CsR account

(iii) Shortfall at the end of thc yea!

(iv) Tot l ofprevious years shortfall
(v) Reason for shortfall
(vi) Nature of CSR activities

(vii) Details ofrelated party transactiols, c.8., contribution !o a tust coDtolled by the

company in relation to CSR expcndituac as p€r relevant Accounti[g Sta.ndard

(viii) Wlerc a provision is msdc with rcspcct to a liability incunrd by cnGring into a

conEactual obligation, the movemeflts in the provision during thc year should be shown

scparatelY

0.39
0.39

27. T.r erpense
Merch 3l 2021 I\tarch 3l 2023

0.3 0 0.05

0.l4

CurreDt lncome tat:
Current income tax charge

Adjustmcnr in rcspect of curcnt income tax ofprevious year

Dcfrrred a.t:
Relating to origi.ation and reversal oftemporary differences

i) Property, plant and equipment

ii) Non dcductible expenscs for tax purposes

iii) Inventory

iv) Uneamed revenue

v) Liability under joint dcvelopment arangemenl

vi) Borrowings

Inaome t.r expense rcponed in the strlem€nt ofprofit or loss

OCI Sectlon
Net losJ(gain) on remeasurements of defincd benefit plans

Deferrcd a.r chrrgcd to OCI

63.61

0.02

2.83

(0.1e)(0.17)

(l 10.27)

9.91

148.23

.\

"2
s

B X MLrtl Eoad

Lian,la!eli-28

Vilas Meilra
Tor.er 1249

(a

q

0 Acc

lll.39 2.64

Depreciation ofproperty. plant and equipment

26. Oth€r e)rpenses

1.,t5 t.46

Details of CSR cxpenditure:



Casa GraDdc Zrs( Privatc Limited
\otes lo t'inrn(irl Statements lbr thc ]tar cnded Marth 31. 2021

(.1 ll anounls arc in ilillions, u less olheneise stoted)

Reconcilirlion of lax expense rnd the accounting pron( multiptied by lndia's domesti. tr!r rrte for N{srch 3l- 2024 and March .ll'
2023

Nlarch 3l 2024 March 3l 2023

Accounting profit before income tax

Tax on accounting profit al statutory income tax rate 25 .l1yo

Tax effect on accounl oflransition lo IND AS

Deferred tax effect

463.96

116.1'l
(53.r0)
47.71

9.97
2.51

0.32.
(0.19)

Adjustments recoSnised in the currcnt year in relatiotl to the cufent tax of prior years

IDcome tar erpenie reported in the strtement ofprolit or loss

rThe Company elecled lo exercisc thc option p€rmitted under section I I5BAA of lhe Income Tax Act, 196l as inttoduced by the Tai(ation

ttws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognised Provision for Income Tax for the year and re_mes-sured its

Defened tax asset (or/and deferred tax liability) basis the rate prescribed in the said section.

28. Errnings pcr rhare
Msrch 3l 2024 Mtrch ll 2023

tl1.38 2.64

Profit attrlbut.blc to equity holders for bosic eernlngs ( A )

Equity Shrres
Number of sharcs at the beginning of the year

Add :- shares issued during lh€ year

Totrl Number ofshrres outttsndlng rt the end ofthe yerr ( B )

Wcigh&d avcrage number of shates outstanding during the year - Basic

Add : wcighted average nunber of shares that have dilutive effect on EPS

Wcight.d lv.rtgc numbcr of shrrca outslrnding during lh. y..r - Ixluted ( C )

E.ming per rhrre of p.r vslue ll0 - B.slc ( D = A / B ) (In O
Ernitrg pcr ihrre ofprr Yrluc {10- Diluted (E=A/C )(In{)

352.58

r0,000

'7.33

10,000

t0,000

10.000

r0,000

10.000

10.000

35,258.00

35,258.00

10.000

?33.13

733.13

N

Viles Mantra
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Cas, Grande Zest Pri\ate l,imited
Notcs to Finrncirl Stetements for the yerr ended Merch 31. 2024
(A!l aDo ntsarcinMi io s, unless othefltise stat

29. Fair value mersurcmcn(!t
The details oflair valuc mcasurcmcnt ol Company's financial assets/liabilities arc as below:

Financial ffsets/liabilities mcasured at Fairvslue through profilnoss:

Ilarch 3l 2021
As.t

Ittrrch 31,2023

As at
Level

Investsnents in quoted investmen6 -mutual funds

The fairvaluc ofthc financial assets and liabililies is includcd at thc amount at which thc instrumcnt could bc cxchanged in a currmr
tsansaction betw.€n willing panies, othcr than in a forced or liquidation sale. Thcre have been no ransfers b.tween levels during the
period.

The management assess€d that the carrying values ofcash and cash equivalents, trade rec€ivables, shon lerm investments, Ioans, trade
payables, bonowings and other financialassels and liabilities appro(imate their fair values largely due to the shorl-tsrm maturities.

Set out below, is a comparison by class ofthe carrying amounts and fair value ofthe Company's finarcial instrummts:

As rt As ,t
M.rch 31, 2024 Mrrch 31,2023

Cerrying Vrlue Fslr v.lue Cr ng l'rlue Frir r'.lue
Flnrrckl Asscts

Cash and cash cquival€rts
Bank balanccs olher than cssh and cash equivalenls
Loans

Other financial assets

FiD.rcid Liibilld.r
Borrowings (Non-Cur€nt)

Borrou.ings (Current)

Tradc payablcs

Olfi cr fmancial liabilitics

30. C.plt.I M.D.8cm.nt
Thc Conpany's objcctivcs of capiral rnanagcrncnt is to rnaximizc thc shardroldcr value. L ordcr to maintain or adjust the capilal
stnrcture, the Company nuy adjust fie rctum to shareholdcrs, issud bultack shar€s or scll ass€ts to rcduce debl The Cornpany
nanages its aapital structurc and mak6 adjustrnents in liSht ofchan86 in economic conditions 6nd thc r€quircmerts ofthe finarcial
coveoaats.
Thc Coryany monitors capiral uiing a Scaritrg ratio, which is nct dcbt divided by totat equity plus net dcbt as bclow.

.Equity includes equity sharc capital aad all other equity componcnts attributable to thc cquity holdcrs

.Net debt includcs borrowingr (non-curent and current), trade payables and other financial liabilities, less cash and cash

cquivalalts (includinS bank balances oth6 than cash and cash cquivalents and rnargin monay dcposits with banks)

At rt As ra
Mrrch 3l 2024 Mlrch 3l 2023

Borrcwings (non-cuncdt 6nd current)

Tmde payables

Ofter financial liabilitics (cuncnt and non.cunrnt)
L€ss: Cash and cash equivalcnts(including balaDces at bant oth6 than
cash atrd casb cquivaleots and rnargin mon€iy d€posits wilh bank)
N.t Debt (A)
Equity share capital

Other equity
Equlty (B)
Equity plus net ddt (C= A+B)
Gcaring ntio (D = A"/C)

(3.23) (177.01)

In order to achiele the objcctivc ofrnaximize shareholders valuc, thc Conpany's capital maragcrncnt, amongst oth6 lhings, airrls (o

ansrlrg lhat it mcrts financial covcnanb attachcd ro thc intd.st-bcaring bormwiDgs that dcfinc capilal sEucrurc rcquircrDants. Any
si8lificart brcach i, mcain8 thc finaDcial covmants would allow tbe baDk to call borrov/ings. Thcrc have berfi no breaches in tbe

fi Dancial covcnants of abovc-rndtioned interest-bearing bonowin g.

No changcs w6c nudc in thc objectives, polici€s or proccss.s for managinS capital durinS the current and prcvious ycafs.

3.22

0.01

359.42

687.6r

3.22

0.01

359.42

68't.6t

t12.0t
45.00

1,223.94

306.95

I t5.3E

267.98

98.t8
788.03

I t5.38
267.98

98.1E

78E.03

3 76.90

t,369.04
95.7 5

220.91

383,36

9E.It
78E.03

1,745.94

95.15

221.2t

r.,66.34
0.10

392.52

I,tt5.96
0.10

39.94

392-62
1,658.96

16.33Vo

,r0.0.{

1,926.00

97.92%

P"

s
e

s

t 32.0r

45.00

t,223.94
306.9s

376.90

1,369.04

95.75

220.91

l,iul

Towerr t249
R l( ioad



Casa Crand€ Zest Prirate l,imited
No(es to Financial Statements for the )ear €nded Nrerch l l,2024
(All amounts arc in Mi ions, u less othentise stat

31. Fin.ncirl risk mal.gemetrt obi€ctives rnd policies

The Company's priDcipal fiDancial liabilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
Iablhres rs ro Iinance lhe Company's operations.

The Company's principal financial asseG include loans, trade, other receivables and cash and cash equivalmts and bank balances

other than cash and cash equival€n6 that derive direclly from its operalions.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credil risk and liquidity risk. The Company's manaSement oversces the manaSement ofthese
risks and cnsures that the Company's financial risk activilies are governed by appropriate policies and procedurcs and that financial
risks are identificd, rneasured and rnanaged in accordancc with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

i. Mrrket risk

Markct risk is thc risk thal thc fair valuc of futurc cash flows of a financial instrummt will fluctuale because of changcs in market

prices. Market risk compris€s lwo lypes ofrisk: interest rale risk and othcr price risk, such as eqlity price risk and commodity/ real-

estate risk.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate (o thc position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023. The sositivity
analysis has bccn prepared on dc basis that thc amount ofnct dcbt and the mlio of fixcd to floating intercst ratcs oflhc debt- Thc
analysis cxcludes the impac! of movemenG in rnarkq lariables on the carryinS valucs of Sratuity and othcr post retirerncnt

obliga!ionJprovisions-

The below assumption has been made in calcularrng lhe sositivity analysis:

The s€nsitivity oflhe rclevant profit or loss item is the effcc( oflhc assumed changes in rGpcctiv€ market risk. This is bascd on the

{inancial assets and financial liabili(ies held at March 31,2024 and March 31,2023.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows ofan exposure will fluctuate becaus€ of chanSes in Interest rate.

The entity's cxposure to the risk of changes in Interest nt.s rclatcs primarily to lhe entity's operating activities (when receivables or
payablcs are subject to diffcreot ilicresl ratcs) and the €rtity's net receivabl€s or payables.

The CompaDy is affeated by the pricc volatility of certain cornrnodities/ real cslate. lIs opcraling activilies requirc thc ongoing

ddrelopnrnt of real €state. Thc Company's managcmm! has developed and cnactcd a risk manaSemeirt stratcSy .egarding

corrunodity/ rcal cstat. paicc risk and iLs mitigation. Thc Cornpany is subjcct lo lhe pricc risk vadabl€s, wbich are ctpectcd to vary in

linc with thc prevailing nurket conditions.

Intercst aa saNitir4ty
Thc following tabl€s dgnonstrate thc s€nsitivity to a reasonably possible change in intcrest mtes, with all othcr variablcs held

con$ant. Thc irryact on lhe CornpaDy's profit beforc tax is du. lo changes in the fair value of non-curreDt aDd currcot borrowitrgs

and other current and non current financial liabilities.

Chrnge in r.te Efect ofprofit
bcfora arr

March 31,2024

Mrrch 31,2023

+lyo
-t%
+lo/o

-lo/.

2.t2
(2.12)

0.5E

(0.58)

The Conpany invests surplus funds in liquid mutual firnds. Thc Conpany is cxpos.d to rns*ct pricc risk arising from uncctlaintics

about futurc values ofthe invcstncnt. The Cornpany manag6 6e equity price risk drough invcsting suplus funds on liquid mutual

funds for short tcrm basis.

1
kai Manlf
o!\srs #249
( [iutl Boad
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Case Grande Z€st Private Limited
Notes to Financiel Statements for the yeer ended Mrrch -11, 2024
(All ann flts a,e h Mi io,ts, unless otheqise stated)

The rable below sumrnarises the impact of increase/decr€asc oflhe Net Assel value (NAv) on the profit for the year The analysis is

based on the assumption thar the NAV price would increrse 57o and decr€ase by 5% with all variable conslant.

Itrcr€sse/
Chrnge in r.te (decre.se) In

rrrofit
Mrrch 31,202{ +5Yo 0.00

-5./" (0.00)

Mrrch 31,2023 +5Yo 0.00
-so/r (0.00)

il. Credit risk
Crcdit risk is $e risk of loss that may aris. on outstanding financial instrumenls if a countcrp.rty dcfault on its obligations. The

Conpahy's exposurc !o crcdit isk arises rnajorly from uadc receivablev unbilled revenue and oth6 financial asscls.

Other financial assds likc sccurity dcposits, loans and bank dcposits arc mostly with anploy€€s, govcmrnent Mi.s and banks and

horcc, the Company does not expcct any credit risk wi$ rcspccl to thcsc financial asscts.

With respcct i,o tradc raccivablcJ unbillcd rwcnuc, the Company has constiNtcd tcams to rcvicw lhc rcceivablcs on pcriodic basis

and to take ncc€ssary mitigations, wherevcr rcquir.d. Thc Corhpany creat.s allowancc for all uns.curd rcccivabl6 bascd on lifctimc
expected credit lo6s (ECL').

iii. Liquidity risk
Thc Company's principal sourccs ofliquidiry arc cash and cash cqlivalcnls and thc cash flow that is Scocratcd liom opcrations. Thc

Conpany bclicvcs $at lhc c5sh and cash cquivalents is sumciaot lo mcet ils cuIrc,rt rcquirernmts. Accordingly no liquidity risk is

p('cciv€d.
Thc brEak-up ofcash and cash cquivalco$, d@osils and invcs!rcnts is as bclow.

Mrrch 3l 2024 Mrrch 3l 2023

Cash and c,sh cquival.nts
Bank balanc6 oth6 than cash and cash cquivalcnts

The table below sumrMriscs the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabililics at thc rEponing datc. Thc arnounls ue based

on contractual undiscounted pa)fircllts

Mrftdty period Mrrch 31,2024 Mrrch 3t,2023

Fin.rci.l li.bllltics - currcnt
Bonowings (currcnt)

Trade payablcs

Other fi nancial liabilitics

3.22

0.0t
| 32.01

45.00

FiD.ochl lirbilitita - norr currctrt
Borrowings
otner fi nancial liabilities

Wilhin a ycar

Wilhin a ye.r
Within e ycar

267.9E

98.18

788.03

I15.38

1,369.04

95.75

220.91

376.90

0.37
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C2s. Gr.d. Zdt Prir.l. l-imn.d
Not6lofin.ncirlSr.l.D.rtiforrLy..r.nd.d [l.r.h]1,2024

in Mi nB unlessotle rse \t.te.l)

12. R.lrt.d prrrt rr2Brclion3

K.yms Erl p.tldrlof p{at qnirY

K.y IruS.rE Fsl,ml of Fr.ln ddtY
(cy mn gcn.lr Frel!l of Fmt ahrY

ky E .g.mt Fls{)|rl of fl.ol ctnity

Kcy Drg.ttarl p€sot[E! of FMt citjt]
mNgclMl Pdsorftl of Fr.fl .mity

Subitaics

casagnnd Prcnin Builder Limited (Fotrcrly tno$n as casaSr.nd Prcmicr

Builds P vatc Limil.d)
Csa GBndc GBcc Privltc Limircd

Cs! Grudc Gud.r cny Build.6 Pnwt. Umir.d
Csr Gdrdc MilesloE Priv.t Limrcd
Ce Cadc H{ffi Privac Linn d

c!i.€n d M.ict Rut PriEr. Linncd
Css.gdd Stun V.luc Ho|B Priulc Lihitld
C$.rr d Bizp.r* PriEr. Limn.d
C'dsEd Rct L PriEr. Limit d

G.r,M.8kiu& tidit d

Cs.sErd MilLnb PrivaE Linit d

CMtrrld P@h AuiUo PriEl. Umilcd

Cegnrd Bscon kivtlc Lihitcd
Cs86rd lrtut Privatc Limned

flock Brild.r P.iv.E Limit d

C!.rs8turd Fitt dhoM Plivst Limncd

Cs.S,5rd Alphift Prival. Liiitrd lftn 22n1DUzl
C$.8fln A$n Ptis. LiniLd
Ce8nd Acrth.tjc Priv.L Limit d
Cegtld SLgcT kivat Linn d

&ori. Build.r Privat timidl

cs.€r{ d vi!e. fti!.t Limit d
Cslgrud tt/dcrwi* Pritd. Limitcd

c...{nd F6h Prirtl. LiBit d

C.r.gnnd Cdr.dt kiEl. rjiit ! (tm L{7_2023)
CB.grutd Co@ PrivaE tiDiGd (ttn 06-0E-2021)

c.s.8nnd Ulb rc PnEtc uhit d (from 3Go&20231

C.5.t td Avdd PriqL LituiLd (f!w 3I {8'2023)
C!i.8n d Gd. e Ral Eirl. Ll,C (lbla lM7'2021)
Cs. Gdn i. SIElt r PriEtc Limit d (w.c.t I l-l2'2023)

Cs. Gn d. Rslto6 kiutc tini.d (w.. I l]'12'2023)
Cu. Gdrd. Valbh Privat LimLd (w...f. I3- 12-2023)

C$igrsdBIll. Hdi4 Privn Umicd
C.!.gnnd Mrglm kiEl. LiEit d

fladr.y Ac. IdllFrt P'iEl. rjnit d (fion 0a4t2023)
CGD llduEid P.!ts PrihL Udl.d (tm 03_ l G2023)

Hc.drty Plloicr hd!tp.* Prilrc Li,nicd (tuo u' 12'2023 )

Vnion Pr.Ei' hin$p.,r Privrc Limitld (for! 0a- 12'2023)

8..co. Prai6ld'Ep.* kiEt Leit d(nom0+|2-2023)
cst€nrd S!...i .n Priht Linicd
UFt y hrld.t PiiEl. Libit d
Iri. Whn bq Ptiv.c Ljoit d (iu! 13'02-2024)

C... Gtud. Ei .rP.is t.tr
C.!. G r& SlEll.r LLP Cl'ill I I 'l 2-2023)

,.b (Till ll{4-2024)

Gnnd. Ciril E grrccnng Privrt. Limircd

Honzons hva(. Limikd
Gand..kiom PriEr. Linild

cuagdnd Sl:yloe/ hBL Limitcd
VisIld Privaa Limn.d

GE d. Ra[u! LLP oill l]-12_2021)

Rtghnth.! SuDd rsidd

viv.city hvar unit d

C&Gn ! V.Iht LLP (TiU 13_12'2021)

D.mirg D.rthpc6 LLP

Ctu. G.Ld Conlmity LLP

C1'rlatE'thy Go!.lt! S.6Lh

sin S..tr Rcddy N.&nr

5s
Llar Minra
Towerr r24g

R l( l,1ult fload
l,randal/efis
tD

-25

(.|.'



C.s. G..nd. 7.rr Prnrl. l,lmn.d
Nor.r to Firrcirl strl.m.nlr for th. t.zr end.d ltltrch ll,2024
tllldhoa B dr. M'llioLr. t,1.* othtruIs"

Nrturc ol Rrhtnrhhip

Bturicg T.chooloE/ Privdt Limitcd
cslamd Bndu Kids Priv.Ic Limtcd
Zcst HoB s.rrch LLP
IRIS D.v.top nt LLP
Am Fadly Ttut 6hip LLP
cegFrd SUFIE H(m LLP
Nol,iliras Hlre Sceh LLP
BIE SGr Ho6 Sc.rch LLP
Cda€drd trc Prifl. Limit d
chdtab.tu w.r!r'ou3in8 P.rts Priut LiBir.d(Ti[ IE-l2-2023)

Sol.c. G.rcd Colffiity LLP

S.. viq Hom S.eh LLP
AAKR.llty Sdic6 LIP
Gllldt. PrcEDtcr lIP
CBs 6nDd. Coinbtld. LLP
PloFl Holding. LLP
Cls.s6nd AM Mr Acr&Ey Edltd.tid
Sp.cio PEhid Glob.l Plt Prt lG Umn.d Gill O.lobq 2023)

c$.sud Sl'iFrt Priv.L Litnit d
Cd GErdc Prcp.e &tuL Linitld

Dqd)rME itrt .io. d6iSr & olulic priEc ttuncd
(fdn ily ttFM B q- int rir .tudio privrG litun d w..-f 10-05_201'l )

EDtir6 urdd comn control

No[. : R.lat d rEiy Eh&n}iF.r. s idmti6.d by lt !'IE8clmt.

ll. TrB.cl6. rlli th. r.l.t.d pttl.t

Pritl.ultB Mt.h31.2024 M.r.n31.2023

Cettud P,!trt.r Build.r limicd (Fffily kmm .. Ce8rud
PEoi.r Build.r Prihrc Limir.d)

C.g Cnd. Axir! Pri{c LimitGd

Ce G.!d. Cre tthL UmiLd

cteG .dc HdE Privra LimiLd

C.s8rud lly&r*i!. Prid. Limit d

cs.grud Milbti. PriEL LiBi.d
C.!r Gdr& S[tn VdlE Hdc hrc Lisilld
cssIutd l,{rsict Rury kiv.t t-i[ir.d
Dlt b EollB Priv.r. Linitd

h) Aihl.rdl.Ddt bllb!
C{5! CnDd. EnLrp.iid [P

D trittg D.v.LF. LP
Cs Cn t& tuin Ptiv.b Utrfi.d

C5 cn {. Civil FndtEirg [tul. unit d

C5. Gn d. MiL{olr ltinc LiDiGd

Ctt GEttd. Srtfl v.tu Hdrts PriEL UEit d

clr. tu Gtd.r City Eild.6 Prifl! LiEiad

c...gn d M.&r rury Priv.E Limit d

C.t gn n Mi[.rd. PriEL Linit d

Drmb lloE PriviL Limtud

CsGn d. C,!t c Priv.t LimiLd

C..gtd ArEhoi Priv& Limi.d
C.sgr.nd Hdie! Priv& UmiLd

223.38

0.34
0.03

122.t I

t_t2

0.03

I l.14
0.0t
0.01

0.25

0.38

0.56
0.02

0.01

0.01

0.03

4.36

12r.58

I _'to

0.1I

5.18

0.01

0.t2
0.01

0.08

18.t4

t34.20

0.01

2.0E

0.27

0.19

-s
Vilal [tantr.
Towrrs r249

A

R j( l,l,r I r ioad
ManCaveli2S
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C$t Grrnde 2hst Priur. Linited
Notes to Financirl Si emenrr (orrh. te.r.nd.d Mamh ll,2024
tAll a ou ts drc Mill@ns r l.si olPb^ise nakd)

ll Mrrch 2024 3l Mlrch 2023

d) Reinbursem€tt of .rIENes
Cssagrand Pr.mier Builder Limiled {Fofmrly known as CasagEnd

Pr.mi.r Builder Priv.le Limit d)

casa G.andc Civil Engirccring Pnvalc Umit€d

140.2r

20.'74

45_62

'I _97

c) F.cilily M.nrqcmett scri.cs
casa cBnd€ Propa.c Pnv.& Limired

r) Lo.n Gir.n
Casa Gmde Axiom P.ivato LimiLd

Csa Grudc MiLstonc kiv.tc LimiLd

C6s GEndc SnEfl ValE HotE Piivat! LimiEd

Css.sr. HmiaB Privltc tihn d

CasagBrd Hydc isc PrivaL Linncd

Casa8nnd Magjck Rurykivat Limit.d

GBcc G.ted comily LLP

csa Onndc Civil Ensi*ding Privd. Linilcd

Duub HorB Privat Umi&d

Casagrand Millcni Prikie Limicd
C.s.gn d k mi Buildcr Limit d (Fomrly klroM at Csagnnd Prmi.r
Build€r Priute LimiLd)

D.ming Daclop.6 LLP

Cas! Gtud€ Hoc P.iEL Lihit d

CsaBErd Fitcdhonrs Privd. Linit d
ce G6dc Gr@ PriBl. LimiLd

0.01

o_27

0.28

0.10
t4.98

0.15

0.02

0.r6
0.68

0.41

1_34

2.58

0.10

0.43

o.2l

5r3.95

1242.80
0.09
0.07

23.93

2.99

'735.70

15.00

0.69

1.20

1.56

7 t.40

323.99

4.90

5_71

744_',12

290.51

cd. Gtudc Civil ErSiEring PriEic Limit d
CaaSEd Pr.dcr Build.r Umncd G(rcly lmM as CdgBld Pdid
Brildd kivar UDt d)

C6lsFrd Hldfli& Pri\d. Linjld
Ddub H@E PnBi. Limi&d

DaBins DddoP.6 LLP

c6a Ghadc rblc Priv.re Limircd

C6ssEnd HdizG PriEl! tidit d

Caagr.rd Ashor kivac Lidl.d
Csa GB.de G.r&n City Buildc6 PriBt Umjled

h) R. lhbut..&trt Erycn!6 R.cdGrY

Ce8r.nd Hmizon! PrivaE Limit d

Cs.g6rd PEmi.r Bundc. Limilcd (FoBIy rnom as Cssrdd Pmid
Buildcr PrivaG Umtud)

lii. Bdrnq oottt.ldbg rt rt. .d ol th. J.rr
.) IhLBt i.c.lY.bl.

CaslsErd Pr.mi.r Buil&r Limit d (FotrEny hom as C..asrand Pr.mid
Btrildd PriEL Linitcdl

caslgard M.gic Rury Priht umit d

Cs. Gnnd. Axim Priui! Limited

Cs.gtud Hlddi!. P.iEi. Limn d

CsagE d Milt nia PriBL Limitld

Cs!3 G6nd. G@c Priutc LiDilEd

Csa G6nd. Hl,c kiul. Lihi.d
Datrub H(mi Privsic LitiLd
Csa GErdc $En Vale Hotucs ltihle Linrcd

0.01

0.35

1.13

0.01

0.06

0.01

0.01

0.03

6_24

0.03

0.01

Rcail

0t!er! 124-.
B ( Mufi



Cosr Gr.trd. Z.sl Privstc Llmited
Not6 to Fin.ncirl Strtem€nB for the yerr end€d Mrrch 31,2024
(A anounls are in Mi ions, unless otheru ise stated)

Jl lldrch 202{
As rl

Jl March 2023

b) Short t.rm Borro*i[gs
Dawning lxvelopers LLP

Casa G6nde Civil Engineering Privale Limited

Danub Homes Private Limited

Casagrard Anchor Private Limited

Casagrand Hyderwise Private Limiied

Casa Grande Garden City Buildors Private Limited

Casa Grande Horizons Private Limited

t,242.79

9.2432.88

0.69

1.56

0.02

71.40

0.59

323.78

2.53

0.10

0.08

0.12

c) lntenst Payable

Dawning Developers LLP

Casa Grdnde civil Engineering Privale Limited

Casagrand Magick Rury Pnvate Limiled

Danub Homes Private Limited

Casa Grande Gmce Private Limited

Casa Gmnde Sman value Homes Private Limited

Casa Cnnde Milestone Private Limited

Casa Grande Card€n City Builders Private Limited

Casagnnd Anchor Private Limited

Casagrand Horizons Private Limiled

0.t I
5.18

0.0t
0.08

0.l0

202.21

0.84

0.10

0.07

0.10

0.10

t _208.16

d) Shrrc Crpit.l
Casagrand Premier Builder Limited (Formerly known as CasaSrand Premier

Builder Pnvate Limited)

e) Trrde Piyrble

Casa Grande ProFare Privale Limited

Casa Grande Enterprises LLP

1.55

15.19

t.8l
I1.43

332.65

0.01

0 Short acrm lo.ns rnd Advrtrcas

Casagrand Premier Burlder Limited (Formerly known as Casagmnd Premier

Builder ftivate Limired)

Dawning D€velopeN LLP

Casagnnd Horizons Privale Limited

Casagand Hyderwise Private Limited

Casa Crande Axiom Private Limiled

Casa crande Glace Private Limited

Cara Gmnde Homes Private Limited

Casagr.nd Fittedhomes Private Limiled

Casagrand Magick Rury Private Limited

2.58

23.93

0.09

0.07

0.10

As at

Jl Nlsrch 202.1

As at
f,l March 2023

0.10

14.98

(b) ContitrgcDt lirbility

(i) Claims against the Compary not acknowledged as debts

Prrticuhrr

t6 4l

Vikas Ma ru
To

R(

Note - .lt is not pBcticable for the Company to estimate the timing otcash oumows' ifany, in rcspect of.bove matters pending resolulion ofthe

rcspeclive proc€€dings.

33. CommitmcDts atrd conaingcncics

(r) CommiamGDts

Estimated amounts ofcontracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided tbr:

(i) Capital expenditure commitments: (31 Match 2024 - Nil ; 3l March 2023 - Nil)

Income la,\

Other matlers*



Crsa Grande Z€st Privste Limit€d

Notes to Financial Strtements for the year endcd March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Millions, unless olhentise stated)

34. Segmcnt reporting

The Group is into the business ofrcal estate development hence segmenl reporting as per lnd AS 108 is nol applicable

35. Rrtio rmlysis .nd its elemcnts

Explsnrtion for Varhnce in rutios by more thrn 257u

l. I\r.rch 2024 vs Mlrch 2023

i) Decreasc in Debt- Equily Ratio is duc to decrcase in total debl.

ii) lncrease in Debt Son'ice Covcrage ratio is due to tighcr profir during lhe ycar

iii) Ircrease in Retum on Equity ratio is due to higher profitability.

iv) lncrease in Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio is due to increase in revenue during the year

v) lncrease in Net Capital Tumover Ratio is (luc to incrqlse in rcvenue during the ycar

vi) locrease irl Net Profit ratio is due to increase in profit

vii) Increase in Return on Capital Employed is due to ircrease in Eaorings bcfore irrterest and taxes

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(ri)

(vii)

R!tio Numerstor Denominrlor
As at March

31.2024
As !t March

3r.2021

Veriance (%o)
Reasol for

change

2024 vs 2023

Debl Service

Coverage ratio

Retum on Equity
ralt0

In!rntory Tumover
ratio

Trade Receivable

Tumover Ratio

Trade Payable

Tumover Ratio

Net Capilal

Tumover Ralio

Net Profit ratio

Retum on Capital

Employed

Retum on

lnvestment

Current Assets

Total Debt

Eamings for debt

service = Net Proht
aner taxes + Finance

cost (including interest

considered as

operation cost) + non

cash operating

expenses

Nct Profits after t&{es

- Preference Dividend

Cost ofgoods sold

Net credit sales =
Cross credit sales -
sales retum

Nel credit purchases =
Gross credit purchases .

purchase retum

Net sales = Tot6l sales 
1

sales relum

Nc( Profit

Eamings before

intcrest and t&xes

Income iiom
lnvestment

Cunent Liabilitics

Shatcholder's Equity

Debt service = Finance

cost (including interest

considered as

opelation cost) + Lease

paymenls + PriDcipal

rcpaymenls

Average Shareholder's

Equiry

Average Inventory

Averuge Trade

Rcceivablc

Average Trade

Payables

Working capital =
Currelt assets -
Cunent liabilities

Net salcs = Tolal sales

- sales retum

Capital Emplol'cd =
Tangible Net Wo(h +

Toral Debt I l)efcrled
Tax Liability

Invcstmenl

1.42

0.98

1.28

1.63

1.19

1',7.93

2.29

4.25

0.15

0.57

NA

t.t5

41.60

23.480/.

-97.75%

0.05 2160.00%

0.20 7 t5.00%

NA

0.16 132t3.890/o

2.00 t4j0%

0.01 14066.610/.

0.67 -17.61%

0.01 5600.00%

NA NA

vitor Menka

M!ndave[-2g

fowe,s t2qg
I( MutBo.d

2024 \s 2023

Culrenl ratio

Debt- Equity Ratio



36. Other $tltutory lnformrtlon
(i) Thc Company do not havc any Benami property, wh.rc any procccding has bcen iritialcd or pcnding against The Group for holdrng
any Benami propeny-

(ii) TI€ Company do not have any tansacrions with companies struck off
(iii) The Company do not haveanycharScs or salisfaclion which is y€t to be rcgistered wirh ROC beyond the staturory period,
(iv) Thc Company havc not tradcd or inveslcd in Crypto curcarcy or Virtual Curcocy during tfic financial y.ar.
(v) The CorpaDy have Dot advanccd or loaned or invested funds to any othcr person(s) or cnrity(ies) , includilg forcign corilies
(Intcrmcdiarics) with thc undcrstanding rhar thc Intcnncdiary shall:

(a) dir€ctly or indirecdy leod or irvesl in othcl p€rsoos or etrtitics idctrtified in aDy rnarmcr whatsoevcr by or on behalf of Tltc Gmup
(Ultimate Bcncfi ciarics) or

O) provide any guarantee, s€curity or the like to or on bchaf of lhe Ultimarc Bcneticiaries

(vi) Thc Company have nol rcceived any fund from any pcrson(s) or cnrity(i€s) , including forEigr entities (Fundiog Parry) with the
undcrstanding (whclhcr rccordcd in wriling or othcrwisc) lhat Thc Group shall:

(a) dircctly or indirecdy lend or invest in other persons or entitics idcntified in any mann€r whatsocver by or on behalfofthc Furding
Party (Ultimatc Bcncfician.s) or

(b) provide any guarante.. security or lhe like on bchalfofthc Ullimate Bcflcficiarics,

(vii) Thc Cornpany have nol any such tsansaction which is not rc.orded in thc books ofaccounls that has becn suncndercd or discloscd
as incom€ duriDg the ycar iD the lax ass.ssme s utrder tbe lncornc Tsr Acq 196l (such as, scarch or srfvcy or any orher relev:nrr
provisions oflhc Incornc Tax Acl, l96l
(viii) Thc borroB,ings obtaincd by thc Company ftom banks ntrd financial insliotions hav. bcco applicd for thc purposcs for which such
loans were was taken.

(ix) Thc Corpany has not bccn dcclard wiltul d.faultcr by any b3nk or linanci.l Institution or orficr lcfldcr.

(x) Thc Company has not Evalucd its propcny, plant snd cquiprncnt (including ridtrf-usc asscis) or inrangiblc asscts or both during thc
curent or previous yca$.

(xi) T!. Cotnpany is oot a Corc Invesunent Compatry (CIC) as dcfiDcd itr dE rcgulatioDs made by ihc Rcs€rvc Baok of t dia and rhe

Group does not havc any CIC6, which arc pan ofthe Group-

37. ErpcDditure h foreigr curreDcy
Thc company h.s not Inad. any cxpcndilurc in forcign curcncy

3E. Audll Trrll
Th€ company tuainleiis proper books ofaccoul as rcquircd by lhc lal,. The books of accouat are abo clecEotricsuy maintaioed by thc
company. Tlc backup is rnaintaincd in scrvcrs locatcd in India- Thc accountinS softwarc has thc fcaorc of rc.ording audit fail of.ach
a evcry rr.nsactiofl.

39. Codc on Socirl S.curity

Tbe Codc on Social Seority,2020 ('Codc') relatiag to cmploycc bcncfits during anployEEnt and post-€mployrn€nt bcncfits receivcd
PrEsidcntial asscrl in Septembcr 2020. Thc Code ha! bcen publishcd in thc Gazette of India. Howevc{, the drtc on which thc Code will
comc ioto crfect has not be€n notificd and thc fhal rulcJintcrprctation havc no! yct becn issued. The Conpa.y will assess th. impact of
the Codc whctr it conrs itrto cffc.t and will record any related impact in 6e pcriod the Codc bemnEs cffcctivc.

As pcr our rcpo( of cvcn datc

Casa Crende Zcs( Privr(e l,imited
Notes to Financial Stat€menls for th€ yerr ended Mrrch 31. 2024
lAll unounts.tt" it, Millions. unless oth.Nise stat.tl)
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